








BOARD OF EDUCATION
MEETING

  

  

MAY 15, 2006

1



BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

REGULAR MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147th STREET

May 15, 2006

AGENDA
A. Call to Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and
comments on agenda items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board
President before the meeting begins.

E. Routine Matters*
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – May 1, 2006
2. *Approval of Special Board Meeting Minutes – May 8, 2006
3. *Approval of Bills
4. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File
5. Summary of Committee of the Whole Meeting – May 8, 2006

F. Information Items
1. Showcase: Seimens-Westinghouse Math & Science Competition; Middle School

World Language Award; eBiz Regional Computer Science Programming Competition;
DECA; One Act Play; Business; Speech; Forensics; VICA; Debate; Culinary Awards;
UNL Computer Programming Contest; and FCCLA State Leadership Conference
Winner

2. Superintendent’s Report
3. Board Comments/Announcement
4. Report from Student Representatives and Presentation of Plaque to Students

G. Unfinished Business:

H. New Business
1. Approval of 2006 High School Graduates
2. Approval of Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Educational Paraprofessional

Association of Millard (EPAM)
3. Approval of CSMI Contract Addendum
4. Approval of Rule 5400.4 – Pupil Services – Student Discipline – Curtailment of

Extracurricular Activities
5. Approval of Rule 5400.6 – Pupil Services – Standards for Student Conduct
6. Approval of Food Service Meal Prices
7. Approval of New ELO Cut Scores
8. Approval of Dental Plan Provider
9. Approval of Health Plan Self-Funded Third Party Administrator
10. Administrator for Hire

2



Agenda
May 15, 2006
Page 2

11. Approval of Personnel Actions: Resignation(s), Leave(s) of Absence, and New
Hire(s)

12. Litigation (Executive Session)
13. Negotiations (Executive Session

I. Reports
1. Bond Construction Report
2. Telephone Prefix Change
3. NCLB Qualified Teachers Report
4. Update on Seniors’ Status on ELO Assessments
5. Report on Environmental Issues

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar
1. Employee Recognition Dinner on Wednesday, May 17, 2006 at 5:30 p.m. at the

Georgetowne Club.
2. Graduation for 2006 on Sunday, May 28, 2006: Millard West will be at 1:00 p.m.,

Millard North will be at 4:00 p.m., and Millard South will be at 7:00 p.m. Graduation
will be held at the Civic Auditorium

3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 5, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

4. Foundation Golf Outing on Friday, June 9, 2006 at the Players Club Golf Course at 12:00
Noon

5. Budget Retreat on Monday, June 12, 2006 at 8 a.m. at the Don Stroh Administration
Center, 5606 South 147th Street

6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 19, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

7. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 10, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

8. New Teacher Breakfast on Monday, August 7, 2006 at 7:45 a.m. – 9:30 a.m. at Millard
West High School

9. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, August 7, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

10. Fall Kick-Off on Thursday, August 10, 2006 at Holiday Inn Central at 8:00 a.m.
11. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, August 14, 2006 at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
12. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, August 21, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in
a single motion. Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board
member.

3



BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

REGULAR MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET

MAY 15, 2006

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM
A. Call to Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and
comments on agenda items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board
President prior to the meeting.

*E.1. Motion by _______________, seconded by ______________, to approve the Board of
Education Minutes – May 1, 2006. (See enclosure.)

*E.2. Motion by _______________, seconded by ______________, to approve the Special
Meeting - Board of Education Minutes – May 8, 2006

*E.3. Motion by _______________, seconded by ______________, to approve bills. (See
enclosure.)

*E.4. Motion by _______________, seconded by ______________, to receive the treasurer’s
report and place on file. (See enclosure.)

E.5. Summary of Committee of the Whole Meeting – May 8, 2006

F.1. Showcase: Seimens-Westinghouse Math & Science Competition; Middle School World
Language Award; eBiz Regional Computer Science Programming Competition;
DECA; One Act Play; Business; Speech; Forensics; VICA; Debate; Culinary Awards;
UNL Computer Programming Contest; and FCCLA State Leadership Conference
Winner

F.2. Superintendent’s Report

F.3. Board Comments/Announcement

F.4. Report from Student Representatives and Presentation of Plaques to Students

H.1. Motion by ____________, seconded by _______________, to approve the 2006 High
School Graduates. (See enclosure.)

H.2. Motion by ____________, seconded by _______________, to approve the Collective
Bargaining Agreement with the Educational Paraprofessional Association of Millard
(EPAM). (See enclosure.)

4



Administrative Memorandum
May 15, 2006
Page 2

H.3. Motion by ____________, seconded by _______________, to approve the CSMI Lease
Amendment and that the Superintendent or his designee and District legal counsel be
authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to this project. (See
enclosure.)

H.4. Motion by ____________, seconded by _______________, to approve Rule 5400.4 –
Pupil Services – Student Discipline – Curtailment of Extracurricular Activities. (See
enclosure.)

H.5. Motion by ____________, seconded by ___________________, to approve Rule
5400.6 – Pupil Services – Standards for Student Conduct. (See enclosure.)

H.6. Motion by ________________, seconded by ____________, that meal prices in the
District’s food service program be established as follows: Student Breakfasts at $1.00
(Elem.), $1.25 (Middle School), and $1.50 (High School); Student Lunches at $1.70
(Elem.), $1.80 (Middle School), and $1.90/$2.50/2.90 (High School); Adult Breakfasts
at $1.50 (Elem), $1.75 (Middle School), and $2.00 (High School); and Adult Lunches
at $2.40 (Elem., Middle School, and High School) or the minimum amount required by
NDE whichever is greater. (See enclosure.)

H.7. Motion by ______________, seconded by________________, to adopt the following
Cut Scores: 1st Grade Language Arts Cut Score to be 41, 4 th Grade Reading
Comprehension Cut Score to be 39, and 7th Grade Reading Comprehension Cut Score
to be 38. (See enclosure.)

H.8. Motion by ______________, seconded by________________, to approve United
Concordia (UCCI) as the Dental Insurance Provider for the Millard Public Schools
Employees, effective September 1, 2006. (See enclosure.)

H.9. Motion by ______________, seconded by________________, to approve Mutual of
Omaha as the Third Party Administrator for the Millard Public School Employee
Health Plan, effective September 1, 2006. (See enclosure.)

H.10. Motion by ________________, seconded by ____________, to approve Administrator
for Hire: Jay Dostal, assistant principal at Millard North High School. (See enclosure.)

H.11. Motion by ____________, seconded by _______________, to approve personnel
actions: Resignation(s), Leave(s) of Absence, and New Hires. (See enclosure.)

H.12. Litigation (Executive Session)

H.13. Negotiations (Executive Session)

I. Reports
1. Bond Construction Report
2. Telephone Prefix Change
3. NCLB Qualified Teachers Report

5



Administrative Memorandum
May 15, 2006
Page 3

4. Update on Seniors’ Status on ELO Assessments
5. Report on Environmental Issues

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar
1. Employee Recognition Dinner on Wednesday, May 17, 2006 at 5:30 p.m. at the

Georgetowne Club.
2. Graduation for 2006 on Sunday, May 28, 2006: Millard West will be at 1:00 p.m.,

Millard North will be at 4:00 p.m., and Millard South will be at 7:00 p.m. Graduation
will be held at the Civic Auditorium

3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 5, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

4. Foundation Golf Outing on Friday, June 9, 2006 at the Players Club Golf Course at 12:00
Noon

5. Budget Retreat on Monday, June 12, 2006 at 8 a.m. at the Don Stroh Administration
Center, 5606 South 147th Street

6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 19, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

7. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 10, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

8. New Teacher Breakfast on Monday, August 7, 2006 at 7:45 a.m. – 9:30 a.m. at Millard
West High School

9. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, August 7, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

10. Fall Kick-Off on Thursday, August 10, 2006 at Holiday Inn Central at 8:00 a.m.
11. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, August 14, 2006 at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
12. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, August 21, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in
a single motion. Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board
member.

6



Enclosure E.1
May 15, 2006

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 17

A meeting was held of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of
Douglas in the State of Nebraska. This meeting was convened in open and public session at 7:00
p.m., Monday, May 1, 2006, at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.

PRESENT: Mike Pate, Brad Burwell, Jean Stothert, Julie Johnson, Linda Poole, and Mike
Kennedy

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on, April
28, 2006; a copy of the publication is being attached to these minutes. Notice of this meeting was
given to all members of the Board of Education and a copy of their Acknowledgment of Receipt
of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes. Availability of the agenda was
communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of Education of this meeting. All
proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance
of the public.
--------------------------------------------------------------------------

At 7:00 p.m. Brad Burwell called the meeting to order and asked everyone to say the Pledge of
Allegiance.

Motion by, Linda Pools, seconded by Julie Johnson, to approve the Board of Education Minutes
April 17, 2006, to approve the bills, and to receive the Treasurer’s Report and place on file.
Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Employees of the Month for May were Bob Trauernicht, industrial technology teacher at Millard
North High School and Dianne Lammers, paraprofessional in the information center at Millard
North High School.

Showcase highlighted Project PayBac Award winners.

Superintendent’s Report:

1. Reminders to board members and the community that the Millard Public Schools
Foundation Hall of Fame Banquet will be on May 12, 2006, the Millard Public
Schools Employee Recognition Dinner will be held on May 17, 2006, and Graduation
for the three high schools will be held on May 28, 2006.

2. The last day of school will be Friday, May 26, 2006, which will be a full day for
students and staff. The last day for teachers will be on Wednesday, May 31, 2006

3. The sixteen members of the Leadership Academy will be “graduating” this week.

7



Board of Education Minutes
May 1, 2006
Page 2

4. All of the data lines have been converted to fiber connections through Cox.

5. Next week’s committee meeting will consist of two health insurance proposals and
the evaluation of the Superintendent. The June 12th committee meeting will be a
budget retreat to review what has come through program budgeting. The meeting will
start at 8:00 a.m.

Comments from the Board:

Mike Kennedy reported that he has visited with various parents in regards to LB 1024 and the
implications of the law. Mr. Kennedy recommended to the superintendent, that when there is
information from the Learning Communities’ meetings possibly a web site could be started or a
brochure developed to share the information with the various constituents.

Julie Johnson extended congratulations to Tony Levy for MEA’s recognition of those teachers
who will be retiring from the school district during the MEA President’s Annual Dinner on
Sunday.

Linda Poole announced she attended the MEA retirement dinner and she thanked the teachers for
their years of service to the school district, and the impact that they have had on the students in
Millard, which will last a life time.

Mrs. Poole reported the Nebraska State Education Association has announced they are joining
the law suit that would break up the Omaha Public Schools. As a Millard Board member, Mrs.
Poole asked why would NSEA jump in to help OPS, and where was NSEA when OPS was
trying to break up the Millard Public Schools. Mrs. Poole said the NSEA has come out with
their recommendation in the race for Governor, and she said she would have a hard time
believing that the Millard teachers would want to support the same position that the NSEA has
taken. The current Governor signed LB 1024 and the candidate that was recommended by
NSEA said he would have vetoed the bill.

Brad Burwell said he will be at all of the events that Dr. Lutz listed in his Superintendent’s
comments. Mr. Burwell said he will be reading at Sandoz this week, too. Mr. Burwell informed
the other board members that he will not be at the budget retreat because he will be out of town.

Mr. Burwell agreed with the comments made by Dr. Johnson and Mrs. Poole about the great
teachers that are in Millard.

Mr. Burwell also commented on the timing of the announcement by NSEA, and wondering why
they didn’t come out with any comments before this time.

Mr. Burwell asked the board members to turn in their evaluations to him as soon as they can.

8



Board of Education Minutes
May 1, 2006
Page 3

Anna Campbell, student representative from Millard West High School, Deepa Joshi, student
representative from Millard North High School, and Car’Lika Estwick, student representative
from Millard South High School reported on the academic and athletic activities at their
respective high schools.

Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Jean Stothert, to approve Rule 6700.6 – curriculum,
Instruction, and Assessment – Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities and
Interscholastic Athletics and Activities (Travel and Trips). Upon roll call vote, all members
voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Jean Stothert, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve the fee rate schedules. Upon roll
call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Jean Stothert, that the construction contract for Ackerman
Elementary be awarded to Lueder Construction in the amount of $2,268,700 (with such amount
including the base bid only), and, that the associate superintendent for general administration be
authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project. A motion by
Mike Pate, seconded by Julie Johnson, to amend the motion to included Alternates 1b in the
amount of $81,200, 5a in the amount of $69,900, 5b in the amount of $70,850, and 5c in the
amount of $77,600. Upon roll call vote, Mike Pate and Mike Kennedy voted aye. Linda Poole,
Brad Burwell, Jean Stothert, and Julie Johnson, voted nay. The amended motion failed. The
vote on the original motion, all members voted aye. Motion carried on the original motion.

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Jean Stothert, to approve Administrator for Hire: Bill
Jelkins, assistant principal at Millard North High School. Upon roll call vote, all members voted
aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Linda Poole to approve Personnel Actions: Resignations: David Park, Kate Savas,
Theresa Huss, Jeff Graver, Lauren Pieper, Rebecca Behrendt, Benjamin Kovacs, Lori Swallow,
Susan Passarelli, Kristi Amos, Teresa Meyers, Stephanie Hirsch, Renee Masching, Allynda
Davis, Jericia French, Karisa Riesselman, Thomas Michalek, Tony Vincent, Anne Kalkowski,
and Loretta Soto, Leave of Absence: Joan Murray, and New Hires: Emily Neneman, Susan
Fleissner, Heidi Neumann, Nicole Makens, Troy Malone, Diane Beninato, Camella McCoy,
Andrew Holz, Stephanie Schaffer, Larissa Knudson, Luke Olson, Jared Draeger, Michael
Catron, Treavor Wragge, Lachelle Fiscus, Lacey Retzlaff, Bethany Herd, Deb Morgan, Marilyn
Opitz, and Duane Albers. (See enclosure.)

Reports given included an Enrollment Report, the Final Enrollment Projections, and a Strategic
Planning Update

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



Eric J. Abens
David J. Akers
Kelsey D. Allen
April Anne Alvarado
Rachel Shenell-Angela Amato
Rajeev Kumar Anchan
Nicholas J. Andersen
Tyler John Andersen
Brittany Kay Anderson
Elizabeth Marie Anderson
Mallory Kirsten Anderson
Todd J. Anderson
Michael Stanton Armstrong
Scott Michael Ausdemore
Cameron Scott Axon
Alyssa Carolyn Bahler
Christopher M. Bahr
Aaron Vincent Baideme
Nicolette B. Bailey
Laura Bailis
Michael Steven Bair
Carly Ann Baldwin
Kalyn Mary Baldwin
Nicholas Scott Baldwin
Megan Christine Banghart
Jessica Rene Barnes
Samuel Thomas Barrett
Jared M. Barrick
Courtney Bartlett
Tyler Mathew Barton
Christopher Stefano Basile
Christopher Michael Bates
Jared Jonathan Bazis
Brian Frederick Bean
Thaddeus James Becker
DeAnna Lee Beckwith
Joshua Charles Beerman
Matthew Michael Belk
Clarke Andrew Beller
Lindsay Rachel Belmont
Tyler Michael Benes
Christopher Lea Bennett
Tina Marie Benning
Danielle Nicole Bergmeier
Dominic S. Berns
Aaron James Betz
Ryan Joel Betz
Derek J. Bierd
Angela E. Bigger
Debbie Ivory Birginal
Allison M. Bitzes
Jill Noel Bloomquist
Nathan E. Boardman
Robert A. Bolter
Deanna Marie Bossè
Katie Leanette Bounds

Christin Alana Bowers
Tiffany Marie Boyd
Zachariah Matthew Boyd
Andrew Joseph Brand
Eric R. Brandt
Miranda Marie Brandt
Brenda Christine Brassill
Carey James Brennan
Christina Elizabeth Brezack
Daniel E. Bribiesca
Nichole R. Bridgeford
Kori L. Brisby
Matthew Jeffrey Brisson
Neosha Jonnie-Mae Broadway
Richard William Bronner
Michael Brooks
Kelsey A. Brown
Melissa Ann Brown
Zachary A. Brugler
Timothy S. Burgess
Alex James Burk
Justin Kevin Burke
Ryan Joseph Burns
Kevin M. Bush
Khilah E. Butler
Bryce N. Butt
Leah Elizabeth Campbell
Anna Jean Caniglia
Alexandra Leigh Cannon
Jacob John Carlson
Zackary Edward Carlson
Matthew W. Carney
Jeffrey Warren Carter
JoAnn M. Carter
Shayla Nicole Case
Jeffrey Colin Cavanaugh
Raymond Russell Chase
Ashley Anne Cherney
Andrew D. Christensen
Kirsten Anne Christensen
Nick S. Christensen
Lisa Ann Christiansen
Laura J. Christianson
Matthew D. Churchill
Michael John Ciesluk
Justin W. Clark
Brittany Nicolle Claxton
Nicholas J. Clifford
Dominic T. Cobbs
Kathleen Anne Condon
Wesley Allen Connell
James Patrick Conway
Andrew J. Cook
J. Benjamin Cook
Joshua J. Coombes
Harrison Richard Costello

81



Justin Raymond Cox
Kyle L. Crum
Sarah A. Cullen
Lauren Elizabeth Culler
Ashley N. Curzon
Rhianne Marie Cvitak
Benjamin C. Dabney
Christopher Steven Dalton
Patrick Michael Daly
Dustin J. Darmody
Kimberly Marie Dean
Jeanette Lena DeFord
Jamie Lynn Deloske
Cody M. DeMaris
Darren J. Demulling
Andrew Fulton Dennis
Christopher O. Dettman
Brian Michael Dickinson
Miranda N. Dike
Caitlin L. Donahue
Justin Drelicharz
Ashley Dawn DuRae
Blake Andrew Elder
Laura Eden Elliott
Kevin M. Ensor
Jonathan Scott Erikson
Cassandra Lynn Eveans
Sarah Jean Ewoldt
Chelsea Faires
Thomas Andrew Fangman
Stacy Anne Fausset
Kristen Tracy Fenton
Danielle Elyse Fezouati
Melinda Marie Ficken
Kaitlyn Maria Filippini
Brett Tyler Fischer
Scott Edward Fischer
Justin Erin Fisher
Pedro D. Flores
Jordan E. Focht
Michael James Foral
Juliane Therese Foubert
Kyle M. Frahm
Katherine Naomi Frei
Alexander R. French
Alan R. Friedman
Alyson Rose Friedman
Ryan Alan Fritts
Austin Dale Fuchs
Daniel Fuhs
Kelci Joelle Fulton
Sabrina Elizabeth Gaeta
Daniel Thomas Gage
Joshua Micah Gaines
Timothy F. Gargano
Timothy Joseph Gatewood

Catherine Susanne Gendreau
Kyle M. George
Brian Georges
Megan Sage Gerhold
Jennifer Lynn Giles
Alexander L. Gilliland
Natalie Francine Gingerich
Patrick Michael Ginn
Scott Daniel Glidewell
Paul Glenn Glover
Jacob Baker Godwin
Alexander Galbreath Good
Benjamin Scott Gorans
Andrew James Gosch
Nathan Robert Graber
Alexander Taft Grace
Maxwell Tyler Grace
Elizabeth Anne Graham
Nicole Marie Gralewski
Nicholas K. Grauf
Jonathan Lowell Green
Ryan Michael Greene
Andrew Lee Gross
Michaela Marie Gruhn
Bret A. Guderian
Amanda J. Gundrum
Rachel R. Guthrie
David Michael Haith
Daniel James Hall
Felicia M. Halloway
Keri Nicole Halvorson
Lauren Leigh Hansen
Matthew James Hansen
Pierce J. Hansen
Jeremy Christian Hanson
Emily Hargrave
Annastasia Simone Harris
Benjamin M. Hartley
Allison Kelly Hartnett
Majid Abdul Hassani
Collin Maxwell Hatter
Sandra K. Hawlik
Laura Christine Hays
Steven F. Held
Haley Jo Herold
Kristen L. Hettinger
Amanda Kristine Heumann
Nathan Hiller
Maurice A. Hintz
Renae Justine Hofschulte
Bryce Blakely Hohman
Denise Rae Holling
Travis R. Holmes
Paul Brian Homer
Alexandria Marie Hope
Brianne Horton

82



Lauren Michelle Hoth
David Joseph Houfek
Vera Lynn Hough
Rebecca Huang
Joshua David Huber
Kyung Hwa Huh
Amy Kathleen Hulstein
Lauren E. Hunter
Nicole R. Huston
Mallory N. Hutcheson
Sara Elise Hutchinson
Martin Edward Hutfless
Heather Ann Hynek
Gracie Marie Incontro
Rebecca A. Ingram
Ryan Lynn Irish
Tricha Maryann Jackson
William J. Jackson
Brandon Lee Jacobi
Ali Khorosh Jaffery
Zachary Janky
Matthew Scott Janning
Sylvia B. Jarosz
Nicholas Alexander Jasa
Matthew Burke Jeffries
Molly K. Jergenson
Trevor James Jessick
Peter David Jizba
Matthew T. Jodis
Jaia Nicole Johnson
Kristen Lee Johnson
Leonard Hubert Johnson III
Ryan Richard Johnson
Anna Christine Johnston
Robert D. Jowdy
Brandan Jacob Kafka
Andrew Lindl Kalis
Anna Leigh Kaminski
Garrett Karls
Nicole Kristine Karmann
Dilfuza Rustamovna Kasymova
Erin Elizabeth Keegan
Sara Joy Keiser
Henry Joel Kelpe
Robert Young Kenny
Kathleen Lynn Kimbrough
Sara Ann Kirchhevel
Cory Lee Klabunde
Lauren Elizabeth Kloos
Daniel Christopher Knight
Stephanie Nicole Knudtson
Alex M. Koehler
Nolan Robert Koehn
Jenny Manuela Koeppe
Maxwell Nicholas Kofoed
Ryan David Konsdorf

Michelle Ann Kopecky
Allison Nicole Kotschwar
Kaleigh Ann Kottich
Lindsey Lee Kraft
Christine Catherine Kramer
Jacqueline Danielle Kramer
Ashley Renae Krecklow
Justin Lee Kriha
Matthew Thomas Kruger
Derek A. Kuch
Matthew Ryan Kuhlenengel
Nicholas C. Kukoly
Steven M. Kunkle
Courtney Anne Kurylo
Jennifer Lauren Lane
Nicholas Raymond Langer
Anastasia Marie Lasley
Melissa Mae Lassek
Matthew James Latner
Katelyn S. Lautenbach
Joel R. Lavelle
Daniel S. Leddy
Lauren Alexandra Leighton
Kyle William LeMay
Jacquelene Chantal Lenie
Madysen Marie Lenihan
Kristine D. Lessman
Steven Lewis
Laura Kathleen Livingston
Lindy Marie Loneman
Samantha Glee Long
Saul Lopez Lopez
Jordan Lorenzen
Emily Ann Maack
Suzanne Nicole Mac
Sarah Macaitis
Afton Pilár Macias
Jacob P. Mains
Philip James Mair
Brett Charles Major
Dino Day Mangimelli
Chris Mansfield
Alex Lee Martin
Cameron Hunt Martin
Matthew J. Martin
Michael P. Martinez
Elizabeth Anne Marty
Kari A. Masching
Jennifer Diane Mason
Melissa K. Matney
Theodoric Aaron Mattes
Andrew M. May
Shawn P. McCardle
Sean Andrew McClenathan
Austin A.E. McGlade
Alexander D. McKenzie

83



Rachel E. McKeown
Joshua E. McMahon
Patrick M. McNary
Adrian E. Meier
Sarah Elizabeth Meissner
Sean Michael Meister
Sara Anne Mellor
AAron A. Mercer
Tommy Reece Merkley III
Marie Regina Mertz
Ryan Christopher Meston
Jessica Leigh Meyerink
Danielle Marie Michaels
Christina Joy Millard
Alyssa Kay Miller
Courtney Ann Miller
Katie Alyse M. Miller
Ashley Ann Miske
Matthew John Mitchell
Tomoki Mitsuya
Courtney Lynn Moore
Jared M. Moore
Eric John Morris
Nicole Marie Morrison
Paige Marie Morrison
Matthew Mason Mosley
Bradley Michael Mrsny
Cassandra A. Muckey
Rachel A. Muller
Sara Weiss Munzesheimer
Elizabeth M. Mytty
Austin Miles Nabors-Keating
Michelle Nanji
Jessica Vawn Nattrass
Danielle R. Naven
Andrea Ellen Nebelsick
Adam Paul Nelson
Andrew Allen Nelson
Nykia Jaleesa Nelson
Nicholas Andrew Newell
Jordan Tyler Newhouse
Patrick Niebauer
Christian Niebur
Tyler E. Noren
Brianne Noelle Nutty
Tyler James Nutty
Amy Rose O'Connell
Andrew Paul Oddo
Brian W. Ogle
Molly R. Ohnoutka
Elizabeth Kalen Ohrt
Jennifer A. Okell
Erin Lynn Raridon Ommen
Roy Gregory O’Neil
Janae E. Osborne
William Ryan Owens

Morgan Elizabeth Pahls
Alicia Sue Palmer
Michael C. Pane
Katherine Marie Papp
Jillian Kay Parrish
Andrew W. Partyka
Jordan William Pascale
Patrick Scott Payne
Makayla Raquel Person
Steven Edward Peters
Alexander C. Petersen
Laura Elizabeth Peterson
Andrew Michael Pettinger
Drew Edward Pettit
Tyler Edward Pfeiffer
Breanna May Pflug
Daniel Tran Pham
Kristin Nicole Phaneuf
Kari Anne Phelan
Joshua David Phillips
Eric Michael Picht
Cody Michael Pick
Brian Joseph Polley
Allison Marie Poock
Jacqueline Rushelle Porter
Jason M. Porto
Erin Kay Prazan
Timothy S. Pulverenti
Megan Quick
Katelyn E. Rabinovitz
Hannah Elizabeth Radio
Ruth Allison Radloff
Justin James Reese
Paige Rebecca Serra Reitz
Derek Steven Renner
Ariel Marie Rettig
Meagan Kristine Rettig
Catherine E. Reuter
Brian K. Reveling
RaKay Marie Reyes
Michelle K. Ribar
Amanda Margaret Riedl
Kimberly M. Riege
Shain Landon Rieman
Joseph Patrick Riley
Nicholas J. Riza
Justin Lee Robbins
Aaron D. Roberts
Brian Matthew Robinson
Manuel Schreiner Robles
Sabrina L. Rogers
Michaela M. Romano
Elise Michelle Romero
Lindsey Marie Roorda
Joshua John Rosenberger
Michael J. Rowen

84



Ryan W. Ruff
Brandon August Ruser
Eric Ryan Rushenberg
Zohra Sahaq
Elizabeth Anne Salzmann
Donna Lee Samburg
Erica Marie Sanders
Anthony P. Santi
Ankur Sarawagi
Nicole E. Sawyer
Michael C. Schaal
Monique Desiree Schaeffer
Ryan Charles Schaffer
Brittany Elizabeth Schmidt
Cassandra M. Schoening
Todd R. Schold
Bret C. Schomer
Spencer Allan Schreiber
Daniel Kent Schroeder
Larissa Katelyn Schultz
Robin Noelle Schwartz
Denise Ann Schwery
Rebecca Lynn Seaman
Lea C. Searl
Micah James Sedlacek
Thane Matthew Seeley
Colin Dean Sempeck
Rachel Marie Sexton
Scott Richard Shaffer
Summer Lauren Shelton
Joshua Dean Sherman
Kaitlyn Marie Sherman
Sarah Lynn Sherman
Thomas Gale Sherman
Savanah Brittney Showalter
Shawhin Showkati
Vanessa Ann Shuck
Joshua D. Shull
Kevin Allen Sicner
Riley Sinclair
Andrew B. Siref
Tyler C. Sisson
James H. Slabaugh
Mallory Brooke Sleight
Brittany Anne Slingwine
Alexander Wil Sheridan Smith
Ronald Anthony Smith, Jr.
Sierra-Rae Mercedes Smith
Mitchell T. Smollen
Timothy Snow
Autumn M. Snyder
Derek J. Snyders
Kyle Daniel Solberg
Justin D. Songster
Erin Elizabeth Sotello
Jessica J. Springer

Clayton B. Staley
Katherine A. Stearns
Sarah Elizabeth Steele
Sarah Katherine Steenson
Maurice J. Steier
Christina Jean Stephenson
Stephanie Marie Stickler
Timothy Alan Strevey
Caryn Elizabeth Stuhr
Sarah Joy Sturgeon
Cassandra Sue Styers
Marija Suci¾
Ashley Jean Sum
Dana Michele Swanson
Jordan Lee Swierczek
Dana E. Tabor
Sarah Marie Tajvar
Jeffrey Joseph Tarpinian
Kazumichi Tatebayashi
Caryl Lynn Terry
Lisa D. Tesarek
Rachel Marie Tew
Lindsay Christine Thomsen
Paige LeAnn Tiesi
Shannon Delores Tillinghast
Olga Chantel Tomchin
Adam Edward Trabold
My D. Tran
Ricky Cong Tran
Midori Elizabeth Treadwell
Charisse Tryon
Amina R. Tsushba
Ryan S. Turek
Stephanie Ray Turner
Rebel Umphlett II
Dane H. Underwood
Angela M. Urzendowski
Thomas Spencer Vaiskunas
Zachary Robert Van Gestel
Lindsay M. Van Vleet
Paul Vasta
Taylor Michael Venema
Lauren L. Venuto
Nicholas J. Venuto
Emmanuel Gonzalo Viel
John P. Villotta
Samantha Jordan Viola
Nicholas Joseph Vlcek
Matthew Louis Volkmann
Rachel Alleane Voshell
Jacob John Vosik
Michael J. Wade
Beau Jared Wagner
Joel Ryan Waldeck
Stephen Bennett Wanning
TiShara Renee Wardlow

85



Lela Beth Waters
Michelle Nicole Watkins
Jonathon Benjamin Wattnem-Haug
Theodore James Weak
Tyler M. Wegener
Brett Alan Weihe
Mark Alexander Weingarten
Nicole Marie Welborn
Catherine Ann Welton
Rebecca Belle Wexler
Daniel Michael Whalen
Stephanie Ann Wheeler
Stacey Marie Whitmore
Andrew M. Wilberger
Marissa Ann Wilmoth
John Chase Wilson
Jacob Tyler Wolfe
Eric Wong
Chelsey Ann Wood
Taryn Lynn Wood
Scott K. Woodworth
Michaela A. Wutkin
Janet Marie Wynn
Corey Austin Young
Claire Elise Zebolsky
Matthew E. Zgoda
Scott Christopher Zimmerman
Jeffrey William Zimmermann

86



87



88



89



90



Millard West High School Graduates 2005-2006

1

Michelle Marie Acierno
Mollie Marie Adam
Brian Mitchell Adams
Michelle Christina Adams
Jonathon Randal Agnew
Madeeha Nizam Ahmed
Mark Joseph Aksamit
Gracey R. Alexander
Micah Josiah-Alfonzo Alexander
Spencer Robert Altman
Sean Alan Alvarez
Rebecca Jayne Amos
Christopher Lee Andersen
Britt McKinzie Anglemyer
Andrew M. Antonio
Alia Lynn Misao Anzai
Alfred Jerrod Anzalone
Katelynd Applegarth
Micah Ann Archibald
Cherron Lee Arens
Rebecca Leigh Armstrong
Kaitlin Lee Arntz
Adam Lee Assmus
Jordan David Ateshzar
Ashley Amanda Atkinson
Jennifer Marie Ayala
Jacob Allen Aylward
Kristina Elizabeth Backlund
Ashley Dawn Bagley
Michael Scott Bandy
Nicholas Kent Bang
Thomas Jackson Bard
Scott Edward Barker
Danielle Renée Bauer
Shayne Orlando Beaber
Nicholas Ross Beaty
Blake Parker Beauchamp
Amy Meredith Belfi
Charles Glenn Bell
Devin Michael Bertsch
Brighu Bijukumar
Lauren Elyse Blakemore
Tammy Renée Blanton
Teresa Lynn Blubaugh
Lacey Jane Bodnar
Lindsey Grace Bodnar
Alex Olympio Borja
Daniel Allen Borowiak
Jessica Anne Boten
Derek Adam Brazda
Thomas Robert Breazier
Patrick Daniel Brittan
Adam Dean Bromley
Raleigh Tucker Brooks
Jourdin Marie Brown
Phillip Matthew Brown

William Joseph Brown
Joseph Scott Brownfield
Alyssa Katherine Brummer
Kyle Dalton Brummett
Kendra Danae Evelyn Brunken
Brent Anthony Buda
Derek Michael Burry
Brittany Leigh Cain
Tyler Grant Cain
Anna Elizabeth Campbell
Jeffrey Michael Carlson
Trenton Jeffrey Carlson
Kyle James Carpenter
Megan Christine Carpenter
Erin Nicole Carrow
Bradley Dale Cary
Antonio VanCleef Castañeda
Caitlin Anne Caughey
Tenley E. Chickinelli
Lauren Michelle Christensen
Ashley Christine Clatterbuck
Kathryn Leigh Claussen
Colin Michael Clifford
Andrew Joseph Clow
Michael Bradley Coalson
Mellissa Ann Colling
Leighanne Marie Collister
Benjamin Joseph Connolly
Jarred D. Constantino
Margaret Marie Cornell
Cassie Lynne Cowger
Justin Mark Craigmile
Sara Beth Crane
Keith Charles Craven III
Brian William Cronstrom
Matthew Ryan Cruzan
Stephanie Patricia Dadura
Kara A. Daeges
Siyuan Dai
Amy Dallon
Larissa A. D'Almeida
Preston Scott Davis
Sarah Ann DeBuck
Chad Steven DeCock
Michael Cory DeLanie
Stephanie Marie Deming
Samantha Lynn Denker
Nicole Elizabeth DeWeerdt
Toby Taylor Deyle
Kayla Lorrainne Dill
Charles Robert Djubek
Thomas James Dowse
Kyle Thomas Duckert
Katherine Elizabeth Dyer
Nadia Dominique Edison
Candice Diane Ekwall

91



Millard West High School Graduates 2005-2006

2

Michael James Elsasser
Lindsey Marie Engle
Alyson Jean Erickson
Joshua Peter Evans
Matthew L. Even
Alyssa Marie Faust
Derek Glenn Feilner
Tiffany Danielle Ferguson
Christopher J. Finlayson
Jordan Fish
Kelly Lynn Fogerty
Rebecca Diane Franklin
Mark Lee Frans
Timothy Lee Fredricks
Jennifer Marie Freeman
Kevin Todd Freeman
Michelle Marie Garvey
Matthew Ryan Garyn
Amanda Nicole-Bree Georgian
Laura Beth Giesselmann
Alyssa René Giordano
Kellen Gregg Goldberg
Travis James Good
Brett Allen Goodwater
Kenneth Wayne Goodwin
Katelin Renae Graham
Robert Joseph Grannan III
Jacqueline Ann Guthmann
Lindsey Marie Hageman
Megan Michelle Hageman
Kristie Leigh Hagen
Amber Elizabeth Hall
Megan Elizabeth Hall
Eric James Hamilton
Nicholas William Hamsa
Dillon Scott Hansen
Matthew David Hanson
Tinya Ann Frances Hardin
Andrew James Harford
Spenser James Harp
Michael Joseph Harrington
Colby Terese Hart
Douglas Robert Hartwell
Jason Randall Hassler
Brittany May Hayduk
Jacqueline Kay Heckmaster
Kaila Jeanne Helton
Ferole Lynae Henrichson
Brianne Marie Herd
Danielle Nichole Herdrich
Megan Marie Hiatt
Melissa Renee Higgason
Katrina Valentine Hilgemann
Lindy Noelle Hill
Tracey Christina Hite
Katherine E. Holden

Benjamin Michael Holmes
Lauren Jane Hook
Alexander Gene Hostetter
Kortney Lynn Hough
Melissa Lynn Hower
John Joseph Hughes IV
Andrew William Jacobitz
James A. Jensen
Robert William Jensen
Zachary Jordan Jepson
Adam David Johnson
Alexandria K. Johnson
Brandon Mark Johnson
Bryan Paul Johnson
Michael Peck Johnson
Thomas C. Johnson
Steven Michael Joiner
Sarah Ann Jordan
Amanda Rose Jorgensen
Kyle Allen Junge
Amanda Marie Kawalski
Vimbayi Vivian Kaziboni
Brian Joseph Keathley
Brian Jeffrey Keiner
Matthew Ray Kensmoe
Thomas Leo Kerkhove
Roderick Joel Kersch Jr.
Sarah Elizabeth Kettler
Christina Jean King
Benjamin Joseph Kittrell
Dawn Marie Klaiber
Darin Steven Kleb
Kerry Michael Klecic
Erin Marie Kleymann
Kelly Marie Klopp
Jennifer E. Klostermann
Elizabeth Catherine Knobbe
Bryan Paul Kocanda
Derek Michael Kock
Phillip Andrew Koehler
Wendy Ann Kostal
Aaron Robert Kozisek
Keith Allen Krohn
David Michael Kroll
Kirsten E. Kronberg
Korwen A. Kronberg
Mathew Robert Kronner
Andrew James Kuehl
Nicole Elizabeth Kuehn
Andrew J. Lallman
Dennis Nicholas Lammers
Brynn Marie Lane
Mark Aaron Lang
Kari Ann Lanoha
Kenneth Matthew LaRose
Jennifer Nicole Laughlin

92



Millard West High School Graduates 2005-2006

3

Matthew Steven Leaders
William Kyle Lear
Marlane Ava LeBlanc
Chelsea Elizabeth Lee
Ji Yoon Lee
Richard Jay Lee
Heather Marie Leichtenberg
Kevin Andrew Lesac
Kristyn Marie LeVasseur
Elaine Li
Abbey Lynn Lickei
Kari Lin
Ericka Jean Kathleen Lippoldt
Alicia Nicole Lomeli
Allie Lynn Lonergan
Alex Monroe Lorenzen
Alexander Joseph Losen
Diana M. Lovejoy
Laura Dee Ludwick
James Axel Maakestad
Zachary John Macholan
Kelly Kathleen Maddock
Krystalyn Ann Marie Mansfield
Melissa Joy Martens
Samuel Adam Martin
Brett Vayne Masterson
Kevin D. Matthews
Stephen Phillip Matychuk
Kelsey Marie Maurstad
William Alexander Mayhan
Alexandra Desireé Mazzotta
Kyle Loren McAndrews
Christopher P. McCartney
Katie Elizabeth McCarty
Michael Joseph McCauley
Holly M. McCrea
Leigha Marie McDonald
Meghan Lee McDonough
David Keith McGeorge
Kayla Mae McKain
Hugh Augustus McManus V
Christopher York McMartin
Jeremy William McQuinn
Alexandria R. McTaggart
Tiffany Ann Meckna
Brett Anthony Metzler
Matthew John Meyer
Heather Nicole Meyers
Tamara Rose Mikolajczyk
Nicholas D. Miller
Ashley Reneé Milner
Megan Marie Minino
Aubry Beth Monnier
Allison C. Montgomery
Lauren S. Montgomery
Clint Edward Moody

Jessica L. Moon
Alexander T. Morey
Amanda J. Mortensen
Katherine Lynne Moulton
Vanessa Angela Moya
Chelsie Amanda Mueller
Wesley Jamison Mulledy
Lindsey Marie Nealon
Michael William Nellis
Andrew Christopher Nelson
Benjamin David Nelson
Bradley Ryan Nelson
Drew Anthony Nelson
Hilary Christina Nelson
Alexander L. Nguyen
Long Khanh Nguyen
Ralph Zachary Nielsen
Katherine Elizabeth Nowell
Brooke Marie Olson
Sara Elizabeth Olson
William Andrew Olson
Scott Mackenzie O'Neal
Justin Lee Onken
Ryan Barry Ono
Alyssa Ann Osler
Alex Thomas Ostblom
Cari Suzanne Ott
Nicholas Patrick Otteman
Emily Warrington Packer
Afton Rae Palmer
Jacob Robert Parish
Kayce Lea Parks
Kenna Marie Parks
Stephanie Alys Paulin
Nicholas Andrew Pearce
Jena Kathleen Pedersen
Teresa Rose Pengilly
Devion Marquise Penn
Sarah Jane Pennella
Lindsey Lee Persigehl
Brandon Lawrence Pete
Heather Ann Pfeifer
Charles Kenton Pfister
Jessica Tess Planos
Andrea Lynn Plum
Nathan Jeffrey Raffety
Bethany Anne Ragan
Nichole Marie Range
Heidi Marie Rasmussen
Leanna Marie Rasmussen
Tyler Patrick Ratigan
Trevor L. Rau
Michael P. Rawley
Jaime Lynne Redmond
Jonathan Lee Reed
Phillip Nolan Reit

93



Millard West High School Graduates 2005-2006

4

Jeffrey Ryan Rhoads
Patrick Russell Rich
Eric John Rickert
Nathan Tylor Ridenour
Daniel Joseph Riemer
Lizeth Nathalia Rivera-Brenes
Laura Elizabeth Robbins
Tristin Alyn Roberson
Jamie Nicole Robison
Travis John Rohwer
Katherine Elizabeth Roloff
Michael Anthony Rosso
Joseph Paul Royers
Kyle Cameron Ruback
Chelsey Jordan Russell
Elizabeth Ann Ruth
McKenna Morgan Sabatka
Hannah Elizabeth Sacco
Kady Alyse Sackett
Passaraporn Saenharn
John Joseph Samek
Jason Daniel Sather
Jacob Michael Saunders
Emily Elizabeth Schenzel
Jessica Diane Schmelder
Erik Owen Schnack
Carley J. Schnell
Breea Kay Schnieber
Robert James Schoenecker
Samantha Jo Schuett
Alexandria Pamela Schwalb
Michael Paul Seeba
Kierstin R. Sensor
Sumit Shah
Nicholas Eugene Shantz
Justin Robert Shapland
Alex Lee Wilkerson Shaw
Danielle L. Sheets
Justin Nels Sholin
Erin Elizabeth Skoog
Aaron Matthew Slagle
Corey Edward Smith
Jeffrey Allan Smith
Keil Lee Sonnenfelt
Erin Marie Sorensen
Nicholas Dale Spanjer
Weston D. Spaustat
Austin James Spellman
Zackary Jonn Sporcic
Amy Jo Sprinkel
Kayla Ann St. Aubin
Adam Paul Stanger
Neil Christopher Stein
Brittany Eleanor Stolpe
Lisa Anne Stone
Erin Kathleen Stover

Benjamin T. Streckfuss
Sidney Maren Strnad
Heather Ann Stroh
Kunal S. Sualy
Colin James Suiter
Kacy Lin Sullivan
Heather Marie Surmeier
Zachary Carrington Sutton
Justin Keith Swanger
Kristin Dru Swanson
Timothy M. Szalewski
Tyler M. Szegda
Jordan Bryce Taj
Sterling Mark Taylor
Ashley Jo Tellez
Brad Andrew Teply
Jenna Leigh Teply
Jeffrey Evan Thayer
Elizabeth Kay Thomas
Leah Marie Thomas
Jeffrey Daniel Thompson
Madeline Reed Thompson
Dana Marie Thomsen
Shayna Danae Thornton
Heather Marie Timm
Rebecca Gail Timm
Danielle Annette Timmerman
Keeley Michelle Tomaso
Heather Ann Topil
Lauren Nicole Torres Estes
Sarah Marie Tracy
Matthew Tran
Matthew Stephen Trovato
Te Jung Tsai
Ashlee E. Vacek
Paul Evan Valdiviez
Diana Nicole Van Blair
Brittany Ann Van Camp
Francis J. Van Wetering IV
Michelle Cassidy Vavak
Kayla Opal Vavra
Nicole Ann Venditte
Kevin August Vonderheide
Joseph A. Vrba
Lauren Song Wallis
Bryan Kirk Ward
Jeremy Leon Ware
Keena Rae Watkins
Amanda Jean Wattier
Tyler Steven Weihe
Melissa Lynn Welch
Brien McLeod Welch Jr.
Kiara Clairice Welton
Thomas Edward Wharton III
Duane Tyron Whitaker
Andrew Thomas White

94



Millard West High School Graduates 2005-2006

5

Zachary Bowen White
Heather L. Whitener
Lindsey Nicole Wichita
Kyle James Wickersham
Heather Nicole Wickwire
Courtney Nicole Wieker
Denae Ann Wieseler
Lindsay Ann Wikoff
Baily Lyn Williams
Christopher Shawn Williams
Emily Katherine Williams
Sarah Christine Williams
Christopher Ross Wilson
Sarah Maria Wilson
Sean Mackenzie Wilson
Keirna Anne Wingfield
Eryn Danielle Wisdom
Nicholas E. Wojcik
Alexander Marius Wolf
Mark Allen Wolver III
Jessica Nicole Woodburn
Laci Rae Wyman
Kelli Marie Yeager
Jennifer Mae-Yin Yee
Andrew Jacob Zeplin
Yue Zhao
Hassan Zia-Uddin

95



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
Agenda Item: Collective Bargaining Agreement with EPAM 
 
Meeting Date: May 15, 2006 
 
Department: Human Resources 
 
Title & Brief 
Description: The District and the Educational Paraprofessional Association of Millard have reached 

tentative agreement for the 2006-07 school year.  The agreement provides for the following 
changes: 

 
(a) Increase all rates by 15¢ per hour.  The starting wage increases from $9.15 to $9.30. 
(b) Each paraprofessional advances one step on the schedule (10¢). 
(c) Add a twenty-fourth (24) step to the schedule. 
(d) Add a 6th training incentive of 25¢ after the completion of an additional 72 clock hours 

of training. 
(e) Increase district contribution towards the purchase of health and dental insurance from 

50% to 60%. 
(f) Total package increase is 5%; the average wage increase is 3.4%.  Total cost of the 

package is $283,326. 
 
 

 
Action Desired: Approval 
 
Background:  
 
Options And  
Alternatives: Return to the bargaining table. 
 
Responsible Person: Steve Moore, Kirby Eltiste 
 
Superintendent's 
Approval: ______________________________ 
 

96



May 15, 2006 CBA EP 2006-07 wchanges Page 1 of 4 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into by and between the Educational Paraprofessional 
Association of Millard, hereinafter referred to as EPAM, and School District Number 17, Douglas 
County, also known as the Millard School District, hereinafter referred to as the District. 
 
 

ARTICLE I 
Recognition 

 
The District recognizes EPAM as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all full-time and part-time 

hourly employees employed by the District in the following job classifications:  (1) general educational 
paraprofessionals; (2) orthopedic educational paraprofessionals; (3) preschool educational paraprofessionals; and 
(4) special education paraprofessionals. 
 

 

ARTICLE II 
Management Rights 

 
Section 1.  The management and direction of the District and direction of the employees covered by this 

agreement, including the right to hire, fire, suspend, discharge, make assignments of work, transfer employees, to 
change job assignments, to determine hours of work and all other acts and actions related to the administration and 
direction of the employees covered by this agreement are vested exclusively in the District; and the District 
specifically reserves all rights and prerogatives not abridged, delegated, or amended by the terms of this Contract. 
 

Section 2.  The District shall not discriminate against any employee covered by the agreement because of 
sex, disability, race, color, national or ethnic origin, religion, age, marital status, political affiliation or participation 
or nonparticipation in any organizations, as set forth in District Policies and Rules, the laws of the State of 
Nebraska, and the laws of the United States. 
 

 

ARTICLE III 
Wages 

 
(a) For the 2005-062006-07 school year, the District shall pay to each employee covered by this Contract 

according to the wage scale attached hereto as Appendix A.  Each employee employed by the district during the 
2004-052005-06 school year shall advance one step on the salary schedule for the 2005-062006-07 school year.  
Pay raises will be effective with the August 310, 20056 payroll. 
 

(b) Each employee assigned by the District to work in BD, MH, and VI special education classrooms and 
other “critical needs areas” determined by the District will receive a stipend of 50¢ per hour above his or her regular 
base wage for each hour worked in a BD, MH, and/or VI classroom and/or “critical needs area”.  In order to receive 
the 50¢ stipend for working in a VI classroom, the eligible paraprofessional must be fluent in Braille.  Identification 
of such assignments will be solely at the discretion of the District and stipends will be paid only to those employees 
who are regularly assigned to such positions.  The stipend will be removed if and when the employee is reassigned 
to a non-qualified position or if the District determines that the assignment no longer qualifies for such a stipend. 
 

(c) Beginning in 2000-2001, each paraprofessional who completes 36 clock hours of District approved 
training shall receive a training stipend wage increase; the first two stipends at the rate of 25¢ per hour, a third at the 
rate of 30¢ per hour, a fourth and a fifth stipend at 25¢ (see Appendix A).  A sixth stipend of 25¢ shall be paid after 
the completion of an additional 72 clock hours of training.  A paraprofessional may request the training stipend by 

97



May 15, 2006 CBA EP 2006-07 wchanges Page 2 of 4 

completing the District’s Application for Training Stipend for Paraprofessionals.  The building principal and a 
personnel administrator must approve the application.  Training hours must have been completed within 36 months 
of the date of application.  Each paraprofessional is limited to one training stipend wage increase during the term of 
this contract; previously awarded training stipends shall continue to be paid.  Each employee who is required by his 
or her supervisor to attend training shall be paid while at training.  If the required training is scheduled outside the 
employee’s normal work hours, the employee may receive additional hours of pay or the employee’s schedule may 
be flexed during the week training takes place.  Each employee who elects to attend training which is not required 
by the supervisor shall do so on his or her own time and shall not be paid for these hours by the district.  A 
paraprofessional and a supervisor may agree in advance that the employee will participate in training “off-the-
clock” (without pay) with the cost of the tuition paid by the supervisor.  In these cases, the paraprofessional must 
agree to reimburse the supervisor should he or she fail to complete the training. 
 
 (d)  The District may maintain and administer a Career Compensation Model (CCM) for selected 
employees of the District.  The policies, procedures, implementation and all decisions related thereto shall be the 
responsibility of the District; provided however, from time to time, the District may receive input from EPAM. 
 
 

ARTICLE IV 
Insurance 

 
 Each paraprofessional who is employed at least 17.5 hours per week or more shall be eligible to participate 
in the Health, Dental, and Life insurance Plans provided by the District subject to the following conditions:  the 
District shall pay one-half sixty percent (60%)of the premium for single health coverage or, one-half sixty percent 
(60%)of the family health premium for married employees or those who have minor dependents; provided, 
however, the eligible employee elects participation and agrees to pay, and does pay, the remainering one-half of the 
elected single or family health premium.  The District shall contribute one-half sixty percent (60%) of the single 
premium towards either single or family dental coverage, provided the eligible employee elects participation and 
agrees to pay, and does pay, the remaining premium.  The District will pay the full premium for basic $50,000 term 
life coverage. 
 
 

ARTICLE V 
Hours of Work 

 
 Each employee shall be paid for each hour or fraction thereof the employee works.  The normal workday 
shall not be more than eight (8) hours.  The normal workweek shall not exceed forty (40) hours.  Each employee 
required to work beyond forty (40) hours in one week shall be compensated for each hour in excess of forty (40) 
hours at the rate of one and one-half the employee's normal hourly rate. 
 
 Each employee is to work those hours as requested by the Principal and approved by the Personnel Office.  
Actual hours worked shall be recorded accurately on time cards issued by the Payroll Office.  Except for emergency 
situations, reasonable advanced notice shall be given to the employee if the employee is required to work beyond 
5:00 p.m. on any given day. 
 
 In the event an employee is required to work more hours than his or her normal work day, employer may 
schedule an equal number of hours off during the same work week and the timecard for such employee shall reflect 
the actual hours worked for each day by each employee. 
 
 Each employee who is employed five (5) hours or more per day shall be given a lunch period of at least 
one-half (0.5) hour.  Such lunch period shall be without pay and the employee shall be free to leave the premises 
during such period. 
 
 Each employee will receive one (1) fifteen (15) minute paid-break per four (4) hours worked.  All breaks, 
including the lunch period, must be scheduled and approved by the principal or designee.  Breaks shall not be taken 
within one (1) hour of the beginning or end of the shift but such breaks may be used to extend the lunch period. 

98



May 15, 2006 CBA EP 2006-07 wchanges Page 3 of 4 

 
 

ARTICLE VI 
Holidays 

 
Each Employee covered by this Contract shall be granted time off with pay for the following seven (7) 

holidays subject to the conditions hereinafter set forth: 

 Labor Day 
 Thanksgiving 
 Friday following Thanksgiving 

December 25 
New Years Day 
One day during Spring Break (actual date determined annually by the Superintendent) 
Memorial Day 
 

 (a)  The employee will be given the same amount of time off with pay equal to the work-hours scheduled 
had the day not been a holiday. 
 
 (b)  An employee must be employed by the District twenty (20) working days immediately prior to the 
holiday to be eligible for holiday pay; provided, however, the twenty (20) working days may include days of paid 
leave; and, provided further, the twenty (20) working days immediately prior to Labor Day may include working 
days immediately prior to the end of the previous school year. 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
Sick Leave 

 

(a)  At the conclusion of each bi-weekly pay period covered by this agreement, each employee shall earn 
paid leave equal to one-half (1/2) the average daily hours scheduled per day in a five day work week, and further be 
allowed any unused and accumulated leave from the previous year to a maximum total of 336 hours of leave with 
pay.  Paid leave shall be credited at the end of each employee’s first 18 bi-weekly pay periods covered by this 
agreement.  Paid leave may be used for personal illness, illness of a member of the employee’s immediate family 
(ten days per school-year maximum), death of a member of the employee’s immediate family (four days per 
occurrence maximum), and business and emergency leave (three days per school-year maximum).  The rules for use 
of leave are established in Board Policy and Rule. 

 (b)  Upon termination of employment, the District shall pay to any employee covered by this agreement 
$7.50 for half of the employee's unused paid leave hours in excess of 40 hours; provided such termination does not 
occur between July 1 and October 1.  No payment shall be made for the first 40 hours of unused paid leave. 

 (c)  After payroll has been processed for the 1st bi-weekly pay period in October, each employee who is 
actively employed by the district on that date and who, as of that date, has unused paid leave in excess of two 
hundred fifty (250) hours shall be reimbursed for those hours in excess of two hundred fifty (250) hours at the rate 
of  $7.50/hr.  The employee's leave accumulation shall then be reduced to 250 hours.  The payment for unused leave 
shall be included in the 2nd November payroll.  The District shall establish procedures for reimbursement. 

 

 

ARTICLE VIII 
Miscellaneous 

 

Each employee covered by this Contract shall be entitled to all the applicable rights and privileges of the employees 
of the District as set forth in Board Policies and Board Rules. 

99



100

smoore
Text Box
 May 15, 2006



Appendix A

General and Special Education Paraprofessionals

None 1 2 3 4 5 6
Step/Range 01 03 05 07 09 11 13

1 $9.30 $9.55
2 $9.40 $9.65 $9.90
3 $9.50 $9.75 $10.00 $10.30
4 $9.60 $9.85 $10.10 $10.40 $10.65
5 $9.70 $9.95 $10.20 $10.50 $10.75 $11.00
6 $9.80 $10.05 $10.30 $10.60 $10.85 $11.10 $11.35
7 $9.90 $10.15 $10.40 $10.70 $10.95 $11.20 $11.45
8 $10.00 $10.25 $10.50 $10.80 $11.05 $11.30 $11.55
9 $10.10 $10.35 $10.60 $10.90 $11.15 $11.40 $11.65
10 $10.20 $10.45 $10.70 $11.00 $11.25 $11.50 $11.75
11 $10.30 $10.55 $10.80 $11.10 $11.35 $11.60 $11.85
12 $10.40 $10.65 $10.90 $11.20 $11.45 $11.70 $11.95
13 $10.50 $10.75 $11.00 $11.30 $11.55 $11.80 $12.05
14 $10.60 $10.85 $11.10 $11.40 $11.65 $11.90 $12.15
15 $10.70 $10.95 $11.20 $11.50 $11.75 $12.00 $12.25
16 $10.80 $11.05 $11.30 $11.60 $11.85 $12.10 $12.35
17 $10.90 $11.15 $11.40 $11.70 $11.95 $12.20 $12.45
18 $11.00 $11.25 $11.50 $11.80 $12.05 $12.30 $12.55
19 $11.10 $11.35 $11.60 $11.90 $12.15 $12.40 $12.65
20 $11.20 $11.45 $11.70 $12.00 $12.25 $12.50 $12.75
21 $11.30 $11.55 $11.80 $12.10 $12.35 $12.60 $12.85
22 $11.40 $11.65 $11.90 $12.20 $12.45 $12.70 $12.95
23 $11.50 $11.75 $12.00 $12.30 $12.55 $12.80 $13.05
24 $11.60 $11.85 $12.10 $12.40 $12.65 $12.90 $13.15

MH, BD, VI, Education Paraprofessionals

None 1 2 3 4 5 6
Step/Range 02 04 06 08 10 12 14

1 $9.80 $10.05
2 $9.90 $10.15 $10.40
3 $10.00 $10.25 $10.50 $10.80
4 $10.10 $10.35 $10.60 $10.90 $11.15
5 $10.20 $10.45 $10.70 $11.00 $11.25 $11.50
6 $10.30 $10.55 $10.80 $11.10 $11.35 $11.60 $11.85
7 $10.40 $10.65 $10.90 $11.20 $11.45 $11.70 $11.95
8 $10.50 $10.75 $11.00 $11.30 $11.55 $11.80 $12.05
9 $10.60 $10.85 $11.10 $11.40 $11.65 $11.90 $12.15
10 $10.70 $10.95 $11.20 $11.50 $11.75 $12.00 $12.25
11 $10.80 $11.05 $11.30 $11.60 $11.85 $12.10 $12.35
12 $10.90 $11.15 $11.40 $11.70 $11.95 $12.20 $12.45
13 $11.00 $11.25 $11.50 $11.80 $12.05 $12.30 $12.55
14 $11.10 $11.35 $11.60 $11.90 $12.15 $12.40 $12.65
15 $11.20 $11.45 $11.70 $12.00 $12.25 $12.50 $12.75
16 $11.30 $11.55 $11.80 $12.10 $12.35 $12.60 $12.85
17 $11.40 $11.65 $11.90 $12.20 $12.45 $12.70 $12.95
18 $11.50 $11.75 $12.00 $12.30 $12.55 $12.80 $13.05
19 $11.60 $11.85 $12.10 $12.40 $12.65 $12.90 $13.15
20 $11.70 $11.95 $12.20 $12.50 $12.75 $13.00 $13.25
21 $11.80 $12.05 $12.30 $12.60 $12.85 $13.10 $13.35
22 $11.90 $12.15 $12.40 $12.70 $12.95 $13.20 $13.45
23 $12.00 $12.25 $12.50 $12.80 $13.05 $13.30 $13.55
24 $12.10 $12.35 $12.60 $12.90 $13.15 $13.40 $13.65

2006-07 Schedule - Proposed

Training Stipends

Training Stipends

May 15, 2006

101



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: CSMI Lease Amendment

MEETING DATE: 15 May 2006

DEPARTMENT: Superintendent’s Office and Technology

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: CSMI Lease Amendment

ACTION DESIRED: Approval X

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: Pursuant to discussions with the Board of Education and at
the direction of Dr. Keith Lutz, Superintendent; Duncan Young, District legal counsel, and Mark
Feldhausen, Assistant Superintendent of Technology, met with Chuck Meyers, Connectivity
Solutions Manufacturing Representative, to negotiate a CSMI Lease Amendment that would
result in the relocation of the current Millard Public Schools leased facility to property
immediately to the east of the present location.

The proposed Lease Amendment is attached along with supporting documentation (Exhibit D).
Conditions included in the amendment are:

1. Rent abatement for three months (June, July and August 2006) which is a $42,000.00
savings to the District.

2. CSMI is also agreeing to include a provision allowing the District to terminate the Lease,
at any time, with six (6) months advanced notice. This translates into a savings of
approximately $168,000.00 for the District in the event the alternative school is opened in
2008, as planned, allowing technology to move to that location and avoid any obligations
for rent under the lease.

3. CSMI will transfer the ownership of the workstations that are currently owned by CSMI,
but are being utilized by the Millard Public School District. This has a value of
approximately $75,000.00.

4. CSMI has also agreed to transfer the ownership of all of the filing cabinets which the
District is currently using that belong to CSMI. This is a value of something in the
neighborhood of $10,000.00.

5. CSMI is also agreeing to give the District all of the office furniture and equipment that it
is currently using in the space, which consists of conference tables, chairs, meeting
tables, stands, and ancillary equipment. While it is hard to put a value on this, a
conservative estimate would be in the neighborhood of $15,000.00 to $25,000.00 if the
District were forced to provide it itself.

102



6. CSMI has agreed to pay for the complete build out of the area, and all expenses
associated with the build out. They have agreed to finish the space to meet a
comparability standard with regard to functionality with a caveat that the District will be
allowed to make some changes based upon the past 18 month's experience and
determining needs. For example, conference rooms may be made a little bit bigger or a
little bit smaller at no cost to the District. CSMI has also agreed to hire Schemmer
Associates to prepare the plans and to involve Dr. Feldhausen and his staff in the
preparation and approval of the plans to make sure that the space is what the District
wants, and will allow the District to approve the plans before any work is to be done.

7. Finally, CSMI will assume the obligation of moving and installing the communications
equipment. Any monthly fees or charges incurred for such access by Tenant shall be
deducted from monthly rent payments.

The potential savings to the District is estimated to be in excess of $250,000. Design and build-
out of the new premises would be undertaken by Schemmer Associates and CSMI in
consultation with the Millard Public Schools with relocation to be completed by September 30,
2006.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the CSMI Lease Amendment be approved
and that the Superintendent or his designee and District legal counsel be authorized and directed
to execute any and all documents related to this project.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Keith Lutz, Mark Feldhausen, and Duncan Young

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

103



YOUNG & WHITE
LAW OFFICES

8742 FREDERICK STREET
P.O. BOX 241358

OMAHA, NEBRASKA 68124-5358
MALCOLM D. YOUNG ELKHORN OFFICE
DUNCAN A. YOUNG Telephone (402) 393-5600 217 E. DOUGLAS
JEFF C. MILLER Facsimile (402) 393-6823 ELKHORN, NE 68022
DAVID J. SELBY E-Mail lawoffices@youngandwhite.com (402) 289-1950
JOSEPH S. RISKO

-----
LELAND C. WHITE
(1899-1981)

May 8, 2006

Dr. Keith Lutz, Superintendent
Millard Public Schools
Don Stroh Administration Center
5606 South 147th Street
Omaha, NE 68137

RE: CSMI Lease Amendment

Dear Keith:

Pursuant to your directive, I met with Mark Feldhausen and Chuck Meyer to discuss and
negotiate an amendment to the lease which would require the Millard Public School District
Technology and Psychology Departments to be relocated within the CSMI Building. We
discussed and tentatively reached an agreement with CSMI regarding the terms and conditions of
the District agreeing to relocate pending Board approval.

The relocation will be conditioned upon several items which are directly beneficial to the District
presently and in the future. The downside of the agreement is the disruption that will be
experienced in the technology department for approximately one week during the month of
September when the actual physical move will take place. They will schedule the move so that
no individual will experience more than a one to two day disruption, and they will make sure any
and all special needs, i.e. training sessions/meetings, will be a top priority and the move will be
coordinated around any of those issues.

The upside for the District are as follows:

1. There will be a rent abatement for three months (June, July and August 2006) which is a
$42,000.00 savings to the District.

104



May 8, 2006
Page 2

2. CSMI is also agreeing to include a provision allowing the District to terminate the Lease,
at any time, with six (6) months advanced notice. This translates into a savings of
approximately $168,000.00 for the District in the event the alternative school is opened in
2008, as planned, allowing technology to move to that location and avoid any obligations
for rent under the lease. This is a very beneficial amendment.

3. CSMI will transfer the ownership of the workstations that are currently owned by CSMI,
but are being utilized by the Millard Public School District. This has a value of
approximately $75,000.00. CSMI has also agreed to transfer the ownership of all of the
filing cabinets which the District is currently using that belong to CSMI. This is a value
of something in the neighborhood of $10,000.00. CSMI is also agreeing to give the
District all of the office furniture and equipment that it is currently using in the space,
which consists of conference tables, chairs, meeting tables, stands, and ancillary
equipment. While it is hard to put a value on this, a conservative estimate would be in
the neighborhood of $15,000.00 to $25,000.00 if the District were forced to provide it
itself.

4. CSMI has agreed to pay for the complete build out of the area, and all expenses
associated with the build out. They have agreed to finish the space to meet a
comparability standard with regard to functionality with a caveat that the District will be
allowed to make some changes based upon the past 18 month's experience and
determining needs. For example, conference rooms may be made a little bit bigger or a
little bit smaller at no cost to the District. CSMI has also agreed to hire Schemmer
Associates to prepare the plans and to involve Dr. Feldhausen and his staff in the
preparation and approval of the plans to make sure that the space is what the District
wants, and will allow the District to approve the plans before any work is to be done.

5. Finally, CSMI will assume the obligation of moving and installing the communications
equipment. Any monthly fees or charges incurred for such access by Tenant shall be
deducted from monthly rent payments.

I have re-drafted the amendment to the lease and have submitted it to CSMI and their counsel for
approval. While it is difficult to ascertain the exact dollar amounts that will be saved by the
District, I believe it is safe to say that it is well in excess of a quarter of a million dollars.
CSMI has been a very reasonable and generous in this matter. I would recommend to the Board
that they approve this agreement. I should have it to you within the next day or so and it should
be available for Board action at their next meeting.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to give me a call.

Very truly yours,

105



May 8, 2006
Page 3

Duncan A. Young
DAY/sh
Encl.

106



MPS/CSMI Tenant Buildout Considerations

The following are items/concerns that need to either be addressed and considered in
the preparation of the plans for the Tenant Buildout.

1. Private entrance to replacement facility on east side of property facing parking lot.

2. ADA compliant ramp for access to new entrance with auto door for wheel chair
access.

3. Private restroom facilities - number of stalls in both men’s and women’s should
be equal to existing facility

4. Comparable rooms (in number, size, power, and data drops) with locking doors
for the following:

a. Office
b. Two training labs
c. One small conference room
d. One large conference/meeting room
e. One storage room
f. One technology repair/work room/lab
g. One break room with water/sink, hot water line for coffee maker, and

sufficient outlets for appliances and vending machines
h. One MDF (data/telecom/server room)

! 20 X 22 room
! Separate air conditioning
! Cable tray in ceiling
! 3 - 30 amp circuits for UPS’ or large central UPS (facility prepared

with 2. MPS recently paid for installation of 3rd—value added)
! 10 - 20 amp circuits for general use
! All cabling directly to permanent patch panels in stationary racks
! Continuous cable runs from MDF to workstations and rooms in

comparable numbers (Cat 6)
! All cabling tested and certified

5. Tall doors to MDF and in entry way to facilitate moving racks in and out without
tilting

6. At least equal number of single and double cube/workstations comparable to
current setting with
! Adequate/comparable power and data in all

cubes
! Cube furniture configuration
! Total of 6 Data drops in cubes for; Fabry, Schmidt, Benham,

Kunes, Dickey, Wolf, Clausen

Exhibit “D”

107



7. Move and setup receptionist station according to tenant needs relative to location
of new entrance.

8. Move and setup antenna for Tsunami wireless data/telecomm connection to
Millard South High School as is currently the case should the cabling distance
from the antenna to the new MDF exceed specifications. If no suitable location
for antenna can be found then access to Cox Business Services 100 Mb fiber
connection should be made to the MDF.

9. Movement of internal and external signage to meet tenant needs

10. Move and place tenant owned clock system to meet tenant needs

11. Movement of all shelving and materials in storage room and work room at
landlords expense

108



AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT ("Amendment") is made
and entered into this ____ day of ____________, 2006, by and between
Connectivity Solutions Manufacturing, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Landlord")
and Douglas County School District 0017, a Nebraska political subdivision
("Tenant").

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant entered into a Lease Agreement
("Lease") on June 2, 2004, for certain leased premises consisting of
approximately 14,000 square feet and described on the attached Exhibit “A”
("Original Premises"), and

WHEREAS, Landlord has requested that Tenant relocate from the
Original Premises to another location in an adjoining building owned by
Landlord, also consisting of approximately 14,000 square feet and described on
attached Exhibit “B” (New Premises), and

WHEREAS, Tenant has agreed to do so conditioned on the terms and
conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants contained herein,
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, Tenant agrees to
relocate from the Original Premises described on Exhibit “A” to the New
Premises described on Exhibit “B”. Such relocation shall be completed on or
before September 30, 2006. Upon completion of such relocation, Tenant shall
surrender the Original Premises to Landlord as provided in Paragraph 7 of the
Lease. From and after the surrender of the Original Premises, the New
Premises shall be considered the Premises for all purposes under the Lease.
Tenant shall also have the right to utilize during the Lease term, in common with
other tenants of the building, those common areas, including corridors, storm
shelters, and restrooms, as shown on the attached Exhibit “C”.

2. As a part of the consideration to Tenant for relocating from the
Original Premises to the New Premises, Landlord agrees that it will forgive and
abate payment of monthly rent by Tenant under the Lease for the months of
June, July, and August 2006.

3. Landlord shall, at its cost, prepare the New Premises for
occupancy by Tenant prior to Tenant's relocation. Landlord shall prepare a floor
plan of the New Premises which shall be submitted to Tenant for approval, which

109



approval will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. The plan shall reflect the
location of the work stations, offices, conference rooms, storage rooms,
classrooms, restrooms and entries and exits. Such plan shall also include
reconfiguring the required and existing workstations in the New Premises in
accordance with Tenant's requirements, relocation of Tenant's data and
telephone communications lines and construction of any demising walls
necessary to separate the New Premises from the remainder of the Building.
Landlord shall build out the New Premises as required by the plans, prepared
and approved by Tenant, such that the New Premises are operationally
equivalent to the Original Premises. Landlord shall construct restrooms within the
New Premises. Landlord shall also construct a new entryway on the west side of
the Building allowing direct access to the New Premises from the exterior of the
Building. Landlord shall also, at its cost, pay all moving expenses for moving
Tenant's personal property from the Original Premises to the New Premises.
Tenant, at its option, may elect to move personal items, files, records and
supplies and in the event of such election, Landlord shall not be responsible for
the cost associated therewith. Other than completion of the Landlord's work
specified in this paragraph, and reflected in the approved plans. Tenant shall
accept the New Premises "as is" and in its current condition. Attached hereto is
Exhibit “D” which shall be provided to the Landlord or Landlord's Engineers to
provide guidance in the preparation of the plan. The preparation of the plan and
all costs of the tenant build out and improvements shall be the responsibility of
the Landlord.

4. In order to expedite the relocation, Landlord has agreed, upon the
surrender of the Original Premises and relocation of Tenant to the New
Premises, to convey to Tenant by bill of sale and without additional
consideration, title to the workstations and all other furniture, file cabinets,
conference tables, bookshelves, chairs and other furnishings identified as
property of the Landlord then located in the New Premises. Simultaneously with
the conveyance of the workstations all other furniture, file cabinets, conference
tables, bookshelves, chairs and other furnishings identified as property of the
Landlord in the New Premises to Tenant by Landlord, Tenant will convey to
Landlord by bill of sale and without additional consideration, title to the
workstations now located on the Original Premises. Both conveyances shall be
free and clear of any liens or encumbrances.

5. Landlord shall be responsible for all costs relating to the move and
set up of the antenna for the Tsunami wireless data/telecommunication
connection to Millard South High School in the event the cabling distance from
the antenna to the new MDF exceeds vendor specifications. Tenant shall
determine whether such move and setup is required. In the event that no
suitable location for such antenna can be identified, then Tenant shall be
provided access to Cox Business Services 100 MB fiber connection to the MDF
at no cost to the Tenant. Any monthly fees or charges incurred for such access
by Tenant shall be deducted from monthly rent payments.

110



6. Provided this lease is not in default, and provided no event has 
occurred which, with the passage of time or giving of notice, or both, would be an 
event of default under the Lease, Tenant shall have the right to terminate the 
Lease, without cause, at any time during the period of time beginning one year 
after such relocation to the New Premises and ending at the end of the initial 
term of the Lease, and any extension thereof, by providing Landlord with written 
notice of Tenant's intention to so terminate at least six (6) months prior to the 
proposed termination date. Upon giving of such notice in compliance herewith, 
the Lease shall terminate on the proposed termination date, and Tenant shall 
surrender the Original Premises on that date in the manner provided in 
paragraph 7 of the Lease upon termination or expiration of the Lease. 

7. Except as specifically modified herein, the Lease shall remain in full 
force and effect as originally executed. All capitalized terms not specifically 
defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Lease. This Amendment 
shall be binding on the successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment the 
date and date first above written. 

LANDLORD: TENANT: 

CONNECTIVITY SOLUTIONS DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MANUFACTURING, INC., 0017, a Nebraska political subdivision 
a Delaware corporation 

111



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Rule 5400.4, Student Discipline: Curtailment of Extracurricular Activities

MEETING DATE: May 15, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Pupil Services

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Student Discipline: Curtailment of Extracurricular Activities
These rules are followed when a student receives a disciplinary infraction and is involved in extracurricular
activities.

ACTION DESIRED: Information Only Approval X

BACKGROUND: Rule 5400.4 is closely related to the Standards for Student Conduct, Rule 5400.6.
Some of the information is identical including certain definitions. When something is changed in one rule,
it is necessary to make changes to the other. In this case, the change is minor and applies to a definition.

OPTIONS AND ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERED:N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Adoption of proposed rule.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: Failure to adopt the rule would keep the
aforementioned rules from being uniform and consistent.

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Kraig J. Lofquist

ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT: _____________________________
(Signature)

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: _____________________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

112



Pupil Services

Student Discipline: Curtailment of Extracurricular Activities 5400.4

I. General Statement. When reasonably necessary to aid the student, further school purposes, or prevent interference
with the educational process, the District shall curtail a student's participation in District extracurricular activities.
Students shall not be permitted to be on school grounds or participate in or attend District-sponsored extracurricular
activities during the time period that the student is excluded from school for disciplinary reasons. In addition,
students may be curtailed from extracurricular activities for misconduct taking place off school grounds and not at a
school event during the academic school year pursuant to the provisions of this Rule and Rule 5400.6 (VIII).

II. Ineligibility During Short and Long-term Suspension, Expulsion, or Emergency Exclusion: Misconduct On School
Grounds or Under District Control.

A. Period of Ineligibility. During any time period that a student is excluded from school due to short-term
suspension, long-term suspension, expulsion, or emergency exclusion for conduct occurring on school
grounds, in a school-owned vehicle being used for a school purpose, or at a school-sponsored activity or
athletic event, the student so excluded shall also be ineligible for participation in extracurricular activities
for the entire period of exclusion, and will also be prohibited from attending any District-sponsored
extracurricular events during the period of exclusion from school.

B. Effective Following Semester if Necessary. The ineligibility period shall remain in effect during the
following semester (including the following academic school year) if there are insufficient school days in
the semester to complete the ineligibility period.

C. Summer. Curtailment of extracurricular activities shall only take place for misconduct occurring during the
academic school year.

III. Additional Ineligibility: Misconduct Off School Grounds.

A. Period of Ineligibility for Conduct off School Grounds. The prohibited conduct contained in Rule 5400.6
(VIII)(C) shall subject the student to the periods of ineligibility for extracurricular activities defined in Rule
5400.6 (VIII)(C) for conduct occurring off school grounds and not at a school event during the academic school
year.

B. District Events During Ineligibility Period. Students who are ineligible for participation in extracurricular
activities will also be prohibited from attending any District-sponsored extracurricular events during the
ineligibility period.

C. Effective Following Semester if Necessary. The ineligibility period shall remain in effect during the following
semester (including the following school year) if there are insufficient school days in the semester to complete
the ineligibility period.

IV. Commutation. Penalties assigned under this Rule may be reduced by the Superintendent or Superintendent's
designee upon the successful completion of counseling, community service, or other alternative to curtailment set by
the District. The District shall have the sole discretion in determining whether the student is eligible for
commutation, and what form the counseling, community service, or other alternative to curtailment must be
successfully completed before commutation may take place. Any costs associated with counseling, community
service, or other alternative to curtailment shall be borne by the student or the student's parent(s) or guardian(s).

V. Procedure. If a student is not being subjected to short-term suspension, long-term suspension, emergency exclusion,
mandatory reassignment, or expulsion, but is having his/her participation in extracurricular activities curtailed for
disciplinary reasons, the following procedures will be followed:

A. The principal or principal’s designee shall make an investigation of the misconduct.

113



B. The principal or principal’s designee may curtail or prohibit participation in an extracurricular activity after
the principal or principal's designee determines that it is necessary to aid the student, further school
purposes, or prevent interference with the educational process.

C. Prior to the curtailment, the student will be given oral or written notice by the principal or principal's
designee of the charges, an explanation of the evidence against the student, and an opportunity to present
the student's version.

D. Within twenty-four (24) hours or such additional time as is reasonably necessary following the decision to
impose curtailment, the principal or principal's designee will send a written statement to the student and the
student's parent or guardian describing:

1. The student's conduct; and

2. The reasons for the action taken.

VI. Effective Date. The effective date of the curtailment of extracurricular activities shall be the date that the principal
or principal's designee provides the student with the oral or written notice of the charges except the principal shall
not issue a letter of curtailment until there is a student admission, court decision or uncontested citation.

VII. Appeal.

A. Curtailment for Ten (10) School Days or Less. If the student’s curtailment of extracurricular activities is
ten (10) school days or less, there will be no right to an appeal.

B. Curtailment for More than Ten (10) School Days. Any student whose curtailment of extracurricular
activities exceeds ten (10) school days may appeal the decision to the Superintendent or Superintendent's
designee by complying with the following procedures:

1. Within five (5) school days of the date of the receipt of the written decision to curtail participation
in extracurricular activities, the student, or the student’s parent or guardian, shall submit in writing
to the Superintendent or Superintendent’s designee:

a. A request to have the decision reviewed; and

b. The reason(s) for the request.

2. Any supporting evidence for the student's appeal shall be submitted in affidavit form with the
written request for review. The evidence may include evidence that the student did not give to the
principal or principal's designee when the student was given oral or written notice of the charges.

3. The Superintendent’s or Superintendent’s designee’s written disposition of the appeal will be
mailed to the student, or the student's parent or guardian, within five (5) school days of the
Superintendent's or Superintendent's designee's receipt of the appeal. If the request for review is
not submitted to the Superintendent or Superintendent’s designee in a timely fashion, the appeal
shall be considered dismissed unless the student, or student's parent or guardian, are able to show
that exigent circumstances prevented the timely submission of the appeal. The Superintendent or
Superintendent’s designee may change, revoke, or impose the sanction recommended by the
principal or principal's designee; the Superintendent or Superintendent’s designee, however,
cannot impose a sanction more severe than that recommended by the principal or principal’s
designee.

114



VIII. Adoption of Rule by Athletic Teams, Clubs, and all Other Organizations Sponsored or Associated With the District.
This Rule and Rule 5400.6 (VIII) shall be adopted and enforced by all District teams, clubs, and organizations which
make up the District's extracurricular activities. If any District team, club, organization, or other extracurricular
activity has written rules or regulations, this Rule and Rule 5400.6 (VIII) will be incorporated into such rules or
regulations. Coaches and staff in charge of District extracurricular activities may adopt such other rules and
regulations as are necessary to maintain discipline and order.

IX. Definitions.

A. "Academic school year" shall mean the time students are in school during the dates and times that are set
by the school calendar adopted by the Board.

B. "Extracurricular activities" shall mean all athletic teams, activities, groups, clubs, homecomings, proms,
dances, graduation ceremonies, and all other organizations sponsored by or associated with the District
which are not part of the District curriculum.

C. "Ineligibility period" shall mean that period of time that a District student is prohibited from participating in
and/or attending any District extracurricular activities.

D. "On school grounds" shall mean on District property, in a school-owned vehicle being used for a school
purpose, or at a school-sponsored activity or athletic event.

E. "School day" shall mean any day that school is in session and students are attending academic courses. It
does not include days that practices for extracurricular activities are held during the summer, or weekends
and vacations that occur during the academic school year.

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 28-507
Neb. Rev. Stat. § 28-518

Related Rules: 5400.1
5400.6

Rule Approved: June 3, 1996 Millard Public Schools
Rule Revised: June 1, 1998; September 25, 2000, April 15, 2002; March 15, 2004; May 15, 2006 Omaha, NE

115



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Rule 5400.6, Standards for Student Conduct

MEETING DATE: May 15, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Pupil Services

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Standards for Student Conduct: The standards are printed and
distributed to all students and parents to ensure each student and parent understand the required Millard
Public Schools Standards for Student Conduct. Both the student and the parent or guardian must sign a
form and return it ensuring that they understand and will comply with the rules set forth.

ACTION DESIRED: Information Only Approval X

BACKGROUND: The Standards for Student Conduct constitutes the rules and regulations followed by all
students, staff and administration. They are developed and reviewed frequently to ensure that Millard
Public Schools operates within the Nebraska Student Discipline Act as well as other state and federal law.

OPTIONS AND ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERED:N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Adoption of proposed rule.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: Failure to adopt the rule would jeopardize the
necessary Standards for Student Conduct update for the 2006-2007 school year. The rule needs to be
printed later this month in preparation for the Student Handbook that goes home with each student when
school starts next year.

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Kraig J. Lofquist

ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT: _____________________________
(Signature)

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: _____________________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

116



1

Pupil Services

Standards for Student Conduct 5400.6

I. Introduction.

A. Policy Statement. Every Millard School District student has the right to an education. The
following Standards have been instituted to ensure that right. Each student and their parents are
required, on their own, to become familiar with these Standards, and to help provide an
atmosphere conducive to learning.

B. Grounds for Exclusion. A student may be excluded from school if there is reasonable evidence
that the student has committed a prohibited act listed below while on school grounds, in a vehicle
owned, leased, or contracted by a school being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle being
driven for a school purpose by a school employee or by his or her designee, or at a school-
sponsored activity or athletic event, or any other place where the governing law permits the
District to discipline students for prohibited conduct.

C. Exclusion from School Grounds and Activities. A student who is excluded from school for a
suspension or expulsion shall not enter upon District property, or ride in a vehicle owned, leased,
or contracted by the District being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle being driven for a
school purpose by a school employee or his or her designee, or participate in or attend a school-
sponsored activity or athletic event. Expelled students may enter upon District property for the
sole purpose of attending alternative education at a location and time designated by the Director of
Pupil Services.

D. Length of Expulsions. Unless specified otherwise within these Standards, the expulsion of a
student shall be for a period not to exceed the remainder of the semester in which it took effect
unless the misconduct occurred within ten (10) school days prior to the end of the first semester, in
which case the expulsion shall remain in effect through the second semester, or within ten (10)
school days prior to the end of the second semester, in which case the expulsion shall remain in
effect for summer school and the first semester of the following school year. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-
283(2).

E. Contact of Legal Authorities. The principal of a school or the principal’s designee shall notify as
soon as possible the appropriate law enforcement authorities, of the county or city in which the
school is located, of any act of a student described in Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267 which the principal
or designee knows or suspects is a violation of the Nebraska Criminal Code. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-
293(1).

F. Sanction to be Followed. If minimum and maximum sanctions are not specified for a specific
prohibited act, the recommended sanction shall be imposed.

G. Students with Disabilities. Disciplinary procedures for students who have disabilities as defined
by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 shall be subject to the disciplinary procedures set forth in District Rules 5400.2 and 5400.3
and applicable federal and state law.

H. Mandatory Compliance. Students and their parent(s) or guardian(s) are hereby notified that
compliance with the District’s Standards for Student Conduct is mandatory. It is the responsibility
of all students and their parent(s) or guardian(s) to become familiar with these Standards.

117



2

II. Violations Against Persons.

A. Use of Violence. Use of violence, force, coercion, threat, intimidation or similar conduct in a
manner that constitutes a substantial interference with school purposes.

1. Pushing, Shoving or Related Noninjurious Behaviors.

a. Maximum Sanction. Short-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of suspension.

2. Fighting. Mutual attempt to physically harm another person through mutual combative
physical contact.

a. First offense.

(1) Minimum Sanction. Short-term suspension. Suspension from
extracurricular activities during time of suspension. There is no
mandated minimum sanction below grade six (6).

(2) Maximum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from
extracurricular activities during time of suspension.

(3) Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev.
Stat. §§79-267(1) and 293.

b. Two offenses or more.

(1) Minimum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from
extracurricular activities during time of suspension.

(2) Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of expulsion.

(3) Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev.
Stat. §§79-267(1) and 293.

3. Physical Assault. Initiation of a violent act against another person through aggressive
physical contact.

a. Minimum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of suspension. There is no mandated minimum sanction
below grade six (6).

b. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of expulsion.

c. Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-
267(1) and 293.

B. Physical Injury to District Employees, Volunteers, and Students. Causing or attempting to cause
personal injury to an employee, a school volunteer, or to any student. Personal injury caused by
accident, self-defense, or other action undertaken on the reasonable belief that it was necessary to
protect some other person shall not constitute a violation of this provision. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-
267(3).

118



3

1. Sanctions on School Grounds.

a. Minimum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of suspension.

b. Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-
267(3) and 293.

2. Sanctions off School Grounds. Citation during academic school year and the student is
found guilty does not contest the citation; or admits that he or she has violated subsection
II(B). Suspension from extracurricular activities for remainder of the semester or
nineteen (19) school days, whichever is more.

a. Second offense Within one (1) year) Suspension for extracurricular activities for
one (1) year. Prior violations of IIB on or off school grounds within one (1) year
will be included as previous offenses.

C. Use of Threats or Intimidation.

1. Use of Threats (Verbal and Written). All threats, including those alleged to be jokes, will
always be taken seriously and are subject to the following disciplinary action.

a. Level One Threat. Using a threat as part of a common expression or in a context
that the recipient does not feel threatened, frightened, or coerced (e.g., “Oh, I
could just kill you for that” or “I will punch you in the nose”).

(1) Maximum Sanction. Short-term suspension. Suspension from
extracurricular activities during time of suspension.

b. Level Two Threat. Using an expression or an implied or veiled threat with the
intent of threatening, frightening, or coercing another and the recipient feels
threatened, frightened, or coerced (e.g., “I will kill you.”).

(1) Minimum Sanction. Short-term suspension. Suspension from
extracurricular activities during time of suspension. There is no
mandated minimum sanction below grade four (4).

(2) Maximum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from
extracurricular activities during time of suspension.

(3) Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev.
Stat. §§79-267(1) and 293.

c. Level Three Threat. Threatening to kill or injure another person or threatening
to damage property with potential for personal injury, without possessing a
weapon or other object that could kill or injure the threatened or intimidated
person, and the student describes how it will be done, including any threats that
concern dangerous chemical substances, biochemical attacks, or bioterrorism.

(1) Minimum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from
extracurricular activities during time of suspension. There is no
mandated minimum sanction below grade four (4).

(2) Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of expulsion.

(3) Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev.

119



4

Stat. §§79-267(1) and 293.

d. Threatening with an Object. Threatening with an object which looks like a
weapon or an object that could be used to injure someone. To qualify as a look-
a-like weapon, the object must closely resemble a real weapon in size, shape, and
color even when examined up close.

(1) Minimum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from
extracurricular activities during time of the suspension.

(2) Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of expulsion.

(3) Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev.
Stat. §§79-267(1) and 293.

2. Bomb Threat (Verbal or Written). Threatening to use any type of explosive or incendiary
device generally referred to as a bomb to injure a person(s) or destroy property.

a. Minimum Sanction. Mandatory expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of expulsion.

b. Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-
1221; Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267(1) and 293.

D. Firearms, Explosives, and Weapons.

1. Guns, etc. Knowingly possessing, handling, transmitting, using, intimidating with, or
threatening with any object or material that is ordinarily and/or generally considered a
firearm, explosive, destructive device, or weapon, including guns, firearms, pipe bombs,
stun guns, B.B. guns and pellet guns.

a. Sanctions on School Grounds.

(1) Minimum Sanction. Mandatory expulsion for one (1) year.
Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of expulsion.

(2) Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev.
Stat. §§28-1202 to 1204.04, 1215, 1216, 1220, 1242, 1244, and 1250;
Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267 (5) and 293.

b. Sanctions off School Grounds.

(1) Citation for illegal possession of a weapon during academic school
year and the student is found guilty; does not contest the citation; or
admits that he or she has violated subsection II(D). Suspension from
extracurricular activities for one (1) year.

2. Other Weapons. Using or threatening with a knife, throwing star, brass knuckles,
chemical substances (including, but not limited to, mace, pepper guns, and bleach), and
any other object that could be used to injure a person.

a. Sanctions on School Grounds.

(1) Minimum Sanction. Mandatory expulsion. Suspension from
extracurricular activities during time of expulsion.

120



5

(2) Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev.
Stat. §§28-1202 to 1204.04, 1215, 1216, 1220, 1242, 1244, and 1250;
Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267 (5) and 293.

b. Sanctions off School Grounds.

(1) Citation during academic school year and the student is found guilty;
does not contest the citation; or admits that he or she has violated
subsection II(D). Suspension from extracurricular activities for one
(1) year.

3. Paint Ball Guns. Possessing, handling, transmitting, using or threatening with a paint ball
gun.

a. Mandatory Action. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during
time of expulsion.

4. Possession of Certain Prohibited Objects. Knowingly possessing, handling, or
transmitting knives, throwing stars, brass knuckles, or other objects not enumerated above
which could cause injury.

a. Minimum Sanction. Short-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of suspension.

b. Maximum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of suspension.

5. Possession of Look-a-like Weapons. Possessing a look-a-like weapon, the object must
closely resemble a real weapon in size, shape, and color even when examined up close.

a. Minimum Sanction. Short-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of suspension.

b. Maximum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of suspension.

6. Exception for Certain Firearms. Subsection II(D) shall not apply to:

a. The issuance of firearms to or possession of firearms by members of the Reserve
Officers Training Corps when training; or

b. Firearms which may lawfully be possessed by the person receiving instruction
under the immediate supervision of an adult instructor who may lawfully possess
firearms.

E. Extortion. Threatening or intimidating any student for the purpose of or with the intent of
obtaining money or anything of value from such student.

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

2. Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267(4) and
293.

121



6

F. Sexual Assault or Attempted Sexual Assault. Any sexual assault or attempt to sexually assault any
person. Sexual assault shall mean sexual assault in the first or second degree as defined in Neb.
Rev. Stat. §§28-319 and 320. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(8).

1. Sanctions on School Grounds.

a. Minimum Sanction. Mandatory expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular
activities for one (1) year.

b. Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-
267(8) and 293.

2. Sanctions off School Grounds.

a. Minimum Sanction. Suspension from extracurricular activities for one (1) year.

b. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. A complaint must have been filed by a
prosecutor in a court of competent jurisdiction alleging that the student has
sexually assaulted or attempted to sexually assault any person off school grounds
not at a school function, activity, or event, and the student’s presence at school
has a direct and immediate effect on maintaining discipline, order, or safety in
the school. Sexual assault shall mean sexual assault in the first or second degree
as defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-319 and 320. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(8).

G. Sexual Contact. The intentional touching of another person’s sexual or intimate parts or the
intentional touching of another person’s clothing covering the immediate area of the other person’s
sexual or intimate parts, without the consent of the other person. Sexual contact also includes the
non-consensual touching by the other person of the actor’s sexual or intimate parts or the clothing
covering the immediate area of the actor’s sexual or intimate parts when such touching is
intentionally caused by the actor. The sexual contact must be such that it can be reasonably
construed as being for the purpose of sexual arousal or gratification of either party. Neb. Rev.
Stat. §§28-318 and 320.

1. Sanctions on School Grounds.

a. Minimum Sanction. Short-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of suspension.

b. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of expulsion.

c. Mandatory Action. Legal authorities must be contacted upon the request of the
offended party. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-293.

2. Sanctions off School Grounds.

a. Citation during academic school year and the student is found guilty; does not
contest the citation; or admits that he or she has violated subsection II(G).
Suspension from extracurricular activities for one (1) year.

122



7

H. Sexual Harassment. Unwanted or unwelcome activity of a sexual nature which materially
interferes with or substantially disrupts the educational process. This may include, but is not
limited to, unwanted touching, pinching, patting, verbal comments of a sexual nature, sexual name-
calling, pressure to engage in sexual activity, repeated propositions, written messages, notes,
cartoons or graffiti of a sexual nature, and unwanted body contact.

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

I. Harassment. Any intentionally hurtful, demeaning, or disparaging acts, words, symbolic
representations, or behavior used by a student or students against another student or students that is
disruptive of the educational process. This includes, but is not limited to, verbal, physical, visual,
or graphic actions such as name-calling, taunting, mocking, slandering, humiliating, defaming,
teasing, pestering; and making derogatory remarks, demeaning jokes, disparaging drawings or
notes.

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

J. Bullying. Any intentionally hostile or offensive verbal, written, graphic, demonstrative, or
physical act that has the purpose of exerting domination over another student through the act of
intimidating, frightening, oppressing, or adversely controlling the student, and that is disruptive of
the educational process. This may include, but is not limited to, verbal, graphic, or written
activities such as name-calling, taunting, blackmailing, inciting to fight, terrorizing, or physical
activities such as poking, blocking or impeding, following, hair pulling, mock hitting motions,
intentionally bumping, tripping, and damaging clothing.

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

K. Hazing. Any activity by which a person intentionally or recklessly endangers the physical or
mental health or safety of an individual for the purpose of initiation into, admission into, affiliation
with, or continued membership with or participation in any group or activity. Such hazing activity
shall include, but shall not be limited to the following: whipping; beating; branding; forced and
prolonged calisthenics; prolonged exposure to the elements; forced consumption of any food,
liquor, beverage, drug, or harmful substance not generally intended for human consumption;
prolonged sleep deprivation; harassing by exacting unnecessary or disagreeable work, banter,
ridicule, or criticism; or any brutal treatment or the performance of any unlawful act which
endangers the physical or mental health or safety of any person. Consent to the hazing by the
student(s) shall not be a defense to hazing.

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

IV. Violations Against Public Health and Safety.

A. Possession of Drugs or Alcohol. Possession or use of an illegal narcotic drug, controlled
substance, mood-altering or behavior-affecting substance, or look-a-like substance, or possession
or use of a prescribed medication by a student for whom the prescribed medication was not
prescribed; or possession or use of drug paraphernalia. Possession or use of alcohol or an alcohol-
containing beverage or liquor capable of human consumption.

1. Sanctions on School Grounds.

123



8

a. First Offense. Suspension for nineteen (19) school days. Suspension from
extracurricular activities while not in school due to the suspension. Parents, at
their own expense, may choose to participate in a District approved suspension
reduction program. Successful completion of this program may reduce the
suspension and curtailment of extracurricular activities by a maximum of nine
(9) school days (results in a total of ten (10) days out of school).

b. Second Offense. (Within one (1) year) Mandatory expulsion. Suspension from
extracurricular activities during time of expulsion. Prior violations of subsection
IV(A) on or off school grounds within one (1) year will be included as previous
offenses.

c. Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-
267(6) and 293.

124



9

Sanctions off School Grounds.

c. Citation during academic school year and the student is found guilty; does not
contest the citation; or admits that he or she has violated subsection III(A).

d. Curtailment of extracurricular activities for nineteen (19) school days.

(1) First Offense. Parents, at their own expense, may choose to participate
in a District approved suspension reduction program. Successful
completion of this program may reduce the curtailment of
extracurricular activities by a maximum of nine (9) school days (results
in a total of ten (10) school days curtailment of extracurricular
activities). Previous offenses of subsection III(A) on or off school
grounds during the current academic school year would not allow
participation in this option.

(2) Second Offense. (Within one (1) year) Suspension from
extracurricular activities for one (1) year.

B. Distribution of Drugs or Alcohol. Distribution or attempted distribution to any other person, of
any illegal narcotic drug, controlled substance, look-a-like substance, mood-altering or behavior
affecting substance, drug paraphernalia, or alcohol.

1. Sanctions on School Grounds.

a. First Offense. Mandatory expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of expulsion.

b. Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-
267(6) and 293.

2. Sanctions off School Grounds.

a. Citation during academic school year and the student is found guilty; does not
contest the citation; or admits that he or she has violated subsection III(B).
Curtailment of extracurricular activities for one (1) year.

C. Possession, Use and Transportation of Medications. The possession, use, and transportation of
prescribed and non-prescribed medications shall be in accordance with the following rules.

1. Possession of Medications (Preschool and Elementary Levels). Possession of prescribed
or non-prescribed medications, or possession of prescribed or non-prescribed medications
on school grounds during transportation to and from school, is prohibited. Elementary
school students may possess and use inhalers according to the provisions of Rule 5600.2.

a. First Offense. Short-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension.

b. Second Offense. (Within one (1) year)

(1) Minimum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from
extracurricular activities during time of suspension.

125



10

(2) Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of expulsion.

2. Possession of Medications (Middle School Level). Possession of prescribed or non-
prescribed medications, or possession of prescribed medications on school grounds
during transportation to and from school, is prohibited. Middle school students may
transport non-prescribed medications and glucose tablets to and from school but must turn
it into the nurse upon arrival at school. Middle school students may possess and use
inhalers according to the provisions of Rule 5600.2.

a. First Offense. Short-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension.

b. Second Offense. (Within one (1) year)

(1) Minimum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from
extracurricular activities during time of suspension.

(2) Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of expulsion.

3. Possession of Medications (High School Level). Possession of prescribed medications is
prohibited. High school students may possess non-prescribed medications, but they may
not possess prescribed medications except in transport to and from school. Prescribed
medications must be turned into the nurse upon arrival at school. High school students
may possess and use glucose tablets and inhalers according to the provisions of Rule
5600.2.

a. First Offense. Short-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension.

b. Second Offense. (Within one (1) year)

(1) Minimum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from
extracurricular activities during time of suspension.

(2) Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of expulsion.

D. Distribution of Prescribed Medications. Distribution or attempted distribution to any other person,
of any prescribed medication.

1. First Offense. Suspension for nineteen (19) school days. Suspension from extracurricular
activities while not in school due to the suspension. Parents, at their own expense, may
choose to participate in a District approved suspension reduction program that in part
must offer instruction on the dangers of abusing medications. Successful completion of
this program may reduce the suspension and curtailment of extracurricular activities by a
maximum of nine (9) school days (results in a total of ten (10) days out of school).

2. Second Offense. (Within one (1) year) Mandatory expulsion. Suspension from
extracurricular activities during time of expulsion.

3. Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267(6) and
293.

E. Distribution of Non-Prescribed Medications. Distribution or attempted distribution to any other
person, of any non-prescribed medication.

126



11

1. First Offense. Short-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities during
time of suspension.

2. Second Offense. (Within one (1) year)

a. Minimum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular
activities during time of suspension.

b. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of expulsion.

F. Receiving Non-Prescribed Medications. Receiving non-prescription medications by high school
students that are distributed by another student at school.

1. Maximum Sanction. Short-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension.

G. Under the Influence of Drugs or Alcohol. Being intoxicated or under the influence of any illegal
narcotic drug, controlled substance, prescribed medication by a student for whom the prescribed
medication was not prescribed, mood-altering or behavior-affecting substance, or alcohol.

1. Sanctions on School Grounds.

a. First Offense. Suspension for nineteen (19) school days. Suspension from
extracurricular activities while not in school due to the suspension. Parents, at
their own expense, may choose to participate in a District approved suspension
reduction program. Successful completion of this program may reduce the
suspension and curtailment of extracurricular activities by a maximum of nine
(9) school days (results in a total of ten (10) days out of school).

b. Second Offense. (Within one (1) year) Mandatory expulsion. Suspension from
extracurricular activities during time of expulsion. Prior violations of subsection
IV(G) on or off school grounds within one (1) year will be included as previous
offenses.

c. Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-
267(6) and 293.

2. Sanctions off School Grounds.

a. Citation during academic school year and the student is found guilty; does not
contest the citation; or admits that he or she has violated subsection III(G).
Curtailment of extracurricular activities for nineteen (19) school days.

127



12

(1) First Offense. Parents, at their own expense, may choose to participate
in a District approved suspension reduction program. Successful
completion of this program may reduce the curtailment of
extracurricular activities by a maximum of nine (9) school days (results
in a total of ten (10) school days curtailment of extracurricular
activities). Previous offenses of subsection III(G) on or off school
grounds during the current academic school year would not allow
participation in this option.

(2) Second Offense. (Within one (1) year) Suspension from
extracurricular activities for one (1) year.

H. Exposure to Bodily Fluids. Intentionally spitting, throwing, wiping, or otherwise dispersing bodily
fluids on or to another student or staff member for the purpose of infecting, inciting, demeaning, or
intimidating that person.

1. Minimum Sanction. Short-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension.

2. Maximum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension.

I. Tobacco. Possession or use of tobacco or tobacco products.

1. Maximum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension.

J. Possession of Fireworks.

1. Maximum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension.

K. Use of Fireworks. Use or lighting of firecrackers or fireworks of any description.

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

IV. Violations Against Public Decency and Good Morals.

A. Public Indecency. Behavior resulting in public indecency (see definition). This subsection shall
apply only to students above grade five (5). Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(7).

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

B. Profanity and Obscenity. Written or oral language that is reasonably offensive or repulsive to the
person hearing the same and which is disruptive of the educational process.

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

128



13

C. Disparaging Language/Symbolism. Disparaging or demeaning language or symbolic actions of
any kind including, but not limited to gestures or language that is intended to disparage, demean,
or subject another student or staff member to ridicule.

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

V. Violations Against Property.

A. Damage to Property. Willfully causing or attempting to cause substantial damage to property, or
repeated damage to property. This shall include school property lent to the student which the
student damages. As to any such damaged property, the student’s parent(s) or guardian(s) shall be
liable for the damage to the school property. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(2).

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

2. Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted when the value of the property is
one-hundred ($500.00) or more. Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-519; Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267(2)
and 293.

B. Theft/Larceny. Stealing or attempting to steal property, or repeated theft of property. This will
include school property lent to a student that is not returned upon demand by an authorized staff
member and for which there is no reasonable justification for the failure to return the property.
Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(2).

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

2. Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted when the value of the property
involved is two hundred dollars ($200.00) or more. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-511 and 518;
Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267(2) and 293.

3. Sanctions off School Grounds. Committing burglary or theft which constitutes a felony
provided the student has received a citation by a law enforcement officer which involves
the offense subject to this subsection and the student is found guilty; the student does not
contest the citation; or the student admits that he or she has violated subsection V(B).
Suspension from extracurricular activities for one (1) year.

C. Arson or False Fire Alarm. Intentionally starting a fire. Use of any fire causing agents to start or
attempt to start a fire. Purposely or knowingly causing a false fire alarm. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-
502 to 504 and 907; Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(9).

1. Minimum Sanction. Short-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension. There is no mandated minimum sanction below grade six (6).

2. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

3. Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted if it is believed the arson was
criminal. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-502 to 504 and 907; Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267(9) and
293.

129



14

D. False Alarm or Report. Purposely making a false alarm or false report, or purposely furnishing
false information or making a false communication or statement, whether verbal, written or
electronic, concerning the existence of any bomb, explosive device or weapon, dangerous chemical
substance, or biochemical or terroristic device, or concerning another’s intent or attempt to be
made to kill, injure, or intimidate any individual or to use any bomb, explosive device, or weapon,
dangerous chemical substance, or biochemical or terroristic device, or concerning the need for
medical, police, or emergency services or procedures. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-907 and 1221; Neb.
Rev. Stat. §79-267(9).

1. Minimum Sanction. Short-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension.

2. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

3. Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted . Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-907 and
1221; Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267(9) and 293.

E. Computers. Direct or indirect use of District computers, computer networks, or computer systems,
which involves offensive, personal, commercial, and/or religious messages, or any unauthorized
access or use of a District computer, computer network, or computer system which violates District
policy or state or federal law. Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-1341; Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(9).

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

2. Mandatory Action. Legal authorities shall be contacted if the action constitutes a felony.
Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-1341; Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267(9) and 293.

VI. Violations Against School Administration.

A. Truancy. Unauthorized absence from school. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-201 and 209.

1. Maximum Sanction. Short-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension.

B. Gambling. Playing any game of chance for money or other stakes. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(9).

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

C. Dishonesty. Dishonesty that interferes with the educational process.

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

D. Cheating or Plagiarism. Cheating on examinations including but not limited to ELO examinations.
Plagiarism on projects including but not limited to reports, research papers, and portfolios.

1. Maximum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension.

130



15

E. Insubordination. Disrespect for, defying authority of, or refusing to obey requests or directions of
teachers, school officials or school employees.

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

F. Disruptive Behavior. Behavior or possession of any item that materially interferes with or
substantially disrupts class work, school activities, or the educational process.

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

G. Nuisance Items. Any item in a student’s possession that is sufficiently annoying, offensive,
unpleasant, or obnoxious that it substantially interferes with or materially interrupts the educational
process. These items may include, but are not limited to radios, camera cell phones, beepers,
walkie-talkies, tape players, cameras, devices that emit laser light beams, and other electronic
devices.

1. Maximum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension.

H. Unlawful Activity. Engaging in any unlawful activity not specifically covered herein, which
constitutes a danger to other students or school personnel, or interferes with school purposes or the
educational process. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(9).

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

I. False Complaints. False accusations or complaints against another student or staff member.

1. Maximum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension.

J. Noncompliance with Code Yellow or Code Red. Intentionally leaving an assigned area already in
containment during a Code Yellow or Code Red alert unless specifically given permission to do so
by the supervisor of the assigned area.

1. Minimum Sanction. Long-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension.

2. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of
expulsion.

K. Student Identification. Failure of a high school student to present the school approved student
identification card upon the request of a District staff member while on school grounds, in a
vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by a school being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle
being driven for a school purpose by a school employee or by his or her designee, or at a school-
sponsored activity or athletic event.

1. Maximum Sanction. Short-term suspension. Suspension from extracurricular activities
during time of suspension.

131



16

VII. Repeated Offenses or Series of Prohibited Conduct.

A. Two (2) or more violations of prohibited conduct, or violation of two (2) or more of the acts
prohibited herein within the academic school year which constitute a substantial interference with
school purposes. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(10).

1. Sanction. Unless otherwise provided herein, prohibited conduct otherwise subject to
short-term suspension shall be subject to long-term suspension; conduct otherwise subject
to long-term suspension shall be subject to expulsion; prohibited conduct initially subject
to expulsion shall be again subject to expulsion.

VIII. Curtailment of Extracurricular Activities.

A. General Statement. When reasonably necessary to aid the student, further school purposes, or
prevent interference with the educational process, the District shall curtail a student’s participation
in District extracurricular activities. Students shall not be permitted to be on District property or
participate in or attend District-sponsored extracurricular activities during the time period that the
student is excluded from school for disciplinary reasons. In addition, students may be curtailed
from extracurricular activities for misconduct taking place off school grounds and not at a school
function, activity, or event during the academic school year pursuant to the provisions of this
section and Rule 5400.4.

B. Period of Ineligibility for Conduct on School Grounds.

1. Period of Ineligibility. During any time period that a student is excluded from school due
to short-term suspension, long-term suspension, expulsion, or emergency exclusion for
conduct occurring on school grounds, in a vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by a
school being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle being driven for a school purpose
by a school employee or by his or her designee, or at a school-sponsored activity or
athletic event, or any other place where the governing law permits the District to
discipline students for prohibited conduct, the student so excluded shall also be ineligible
for participation in extracurricular activities for the entire period of exclusion, and will
also be prohibited from being on District property or attending any District-sponsored
extracurricular events during the period of exclusion from school.

2. Effective Following Semester if Necessary. The ineligibility period shall remain in effect
during the following semester (including the following school year) if there are
insufficient school days in the semester to complete the ineligibility period.

C. Period of Ineligibility for Conduct off School Grounds. The following prohibited conduct
occurring off school grounds not at a school function, activity, or event during the academic school
year shall subject the student to the following periods of ineligibility for extracurricular activities:

1. Guns, etc. Knowingly possessing, handling, transmitting, using, intimidating with, or
threatening with any object or material that is ordinarily and/or generally considered a
firearm, explosive, destructive device, or weapon, including guns, firearms, pipe bombs,
stun guns, B.B. guns and pellet guns, provided the student has received a citation by a law
enforcement officer which involves the offense subject to this subsection and the student
is found guilty, the student does not contest, or the student admits that he or she has
violated this subsection.

a. Suspension from extracurricular activities for one (1) year.

132



17

2. Other Weapons. Using or threatening with a knife, throwing star, brass knuckles,
chemical substances (including, but not limited to, mace, pepper guns, and bleach), and
any other object that could be used to injure a person, provided the student has received a
citation by a law enforcement officer which involves the offense subject to this subsection
and the student is found guilty, the student does not contest, or the student admits that he
or she has violated this subsection.

a. Sanction. Ineligibility period of one (1) year.

3. Sexual Contact. The intentional touching of another person’s sexual or intimate parts or
the intentional touching of another person’s clothing covering the immediate area of the
other person’s sexual or intimate parts, without the consent of the other person. Sexual
contact also includes the non-consensual touching by the other person of the actor’s
sexual or intimate parts or the clothing covering the immediate area of the actor’s sexual
or intimate parts when such touching is intentionally caused by the actor provided the
student has received a citation by a law enforcement officer which involves the offense
subject to this subsection and the student is found guilty, the student does not contest, or
the student admits that he or she has violated this subsection.

a. Sanction. Ineligibility period of one (1) year.

4. Possession of Drugs or Alcohol. The use or possession of an illegal narcotic drug, drug
paraphernalia, look-a-like substance, controlled substance, mood-altering or behavior-
affecting substance, or alcoholic beverage, provided the student has received a citation by
a law enforcement officer which involves the offense subject to this subsection and the
student is found guilty, the student does not contest the citation, or the student admits that
he or she has violated this subsection.

a. First Offense. Ineligibility period of nineteen (19) school days. Parents, at their
own expense, may choose to participate in a District approved suspension
reduction program. Successful completion of this program may reduce the
curtailment of extracurricular activities a maximum of nine (9) school days
(results in a total of ten (10) school days curtailment of extracurricular
activities).

b. Second Offense. (Within one (1) year) Suspension from extracurricular
activities for one (1) year. Prior violations of subsection IV(A) on or off school
grounds within one (1) year will be included as previous offenses.

5. Distribution of Drugs or Alcohol. The dispensing, sale, or the intent to sell or dispense an
illegal narcotic drug, look-a-like substance, controlled substance, mood-altering or
behavior-affecting substance, or alcoholic beverage, provided the student has received a
citation by a law enforcement officer which involves the offense subject to this subsection
and the student is found guilty, the student does not contest the citation, or the student
admits that he or she has violated this subsection.

a. Sanction. Ineligibility period of one (1) year.

133



18

6. Under the Influence of Drugs or Alcohol. Being intoxicated or under the influence of any
illegal narcotic drug, controlled substance, prescribed medication by a student for whom
the prescribed medication was not prescribed, mood-altering or behavior-affecting
substance, or alcohol, provided the student has received a citation by a law enforcement
officer which involves the offense subject to this subsection and the student is found
guilty, the student does not contest, or the student admits that he or she has violated this
subsection.

a. First Offense. Ineligibility period of nineteen (19) school days. Parents, at their
own expense, may choose to participate in a District approved suspension
reduction program. Successful completion of this program may reduce the
curtailment of extracurricular activities a maximum of nine (9) school days
(results in a total of ten (10) school days curtailment of extracurricular
activities).

b. Second Offense. (Within one (1) year) Suspension from extracurricular
activities for one (1) year. Prior violations of subsection IV(G) on or off school
grounds within one (1) year will be included as previous violations.

7. Physical Injury to District Employees, Volunteers, and Students. Causing or attempting
to cause personal injury to any District employee, school volunteer, or to any student,
provided the student has received a citation by a law enforcement officer which involves
the offense subject to this subsection and the student is found guilty, the student does not
contest the citation, or the student admits that he or she has violated this subsection.

a. Sanction. Ineligibility period of remainder of the semester or nineteen (19)
school days, whichever is more.

b. Second Offense. (Within one (1) year) Suspension of extracurricular activities
for one (1) year. Prior violations of subsection II (B) on or off school grounds
within one (1) year will be included as prior offenses.

8. Sexual Assault or Attempted Sexual Assault. Sexually assaulting or attempting to
sexually assault any person, provided the student has received a citation by a law
enforcement officer which involves the offense subject to this subsection and the student
is found guilty, the student does not contest the citation, the student admits that he or she
has violated this subsection, or a complaint has been filed by a prosecutor in a court of
competent jurisdiction alleging that the student has sexually assaulted or attempted to
sexually assault any person.

a. Sanction. Ineligibility period of one (1) year.

9. Theft/Larceny. Committing a burglary or theft that constitutes a felony, provided the
student has received a citation by a law enforcement officer which involves the offense
subject to this subsection and the student is found guilty, the student does not contest the
citation, or the student admits that he or she has violated this subsection.

a. Sanction. Ineligibility period of one (1) year.

10. Repeated Offenses. Two (2) or more offenses of one (1) of the above prohibited actions.
Prior offenses of the above prohibited actions which occur on school grounds within (1)
year will be included as previous offenses.

a. Sanction: Ineligibility period of one (1) year.

134



19

D. District Events During Ineligibility Period. Students who are ineligible for participation in
extracurricular activities will also be prohibited from attending any District-sponsored
extracurricular events during the ineligibility period.

E. Effective Following Semester if Necessary. The ineligibility period shall remain in effect during
the following semester (including the following school year) if there are insufficient school days in
the semester to complete the ineligibility period.

F. Commutation. Penalties assigned under this Section may be reduced by the Superintendent or
Superintendent’s designee upon the successful completion of counseling, community service, or
other alternatives to curtailment set by the District. The District shall have the sole discretion in
determining whether the student is eligible for commutation, and what form the counseling,
community service, or other alternatives to curtailment must be successfully completed before
commutation may take place. Any costs associated with counseling, community service, or other
alternatives to curtailment shall be borne by the student or the student’s parent(s) or guardian(s).

G. Effective Date. The effective date of the curtailment of extracurricular activities shall be the date
that the principal or principal’s designee provides the student with the oral or written notice of the
charges except the principal shall not issue a letter of curtailment until there is a student admission,
court decision or uncontested citation.

IX. Definitions.

A. “Alcoholic beverage” shall mean any substance subject to the jurisdiction of the Nebraska Liquor
Commission.

B. “Citation” shall mean a summons to appear in court issued by a law enforcement officer.

C. “Controlled substance” shall mean opiates, opium derivatives, depressants, stimulants, and the
substances and derivatives as defined by Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-401(4) including, but not limited to,
“uppers”, “downers”, barbiturates, amphetamines, LSD, heroin, hashish, hallucinogenics or
cocaine, and substances, such as glue, to the extent any such substance is used for the purpose of
mood or behavior alteration by a student, and any other substance which alters the mood or
behavior and which is not taken for medical purposes (e.g., steroids).

D. “Curtailment of extracurricular activities” shall mean that the student is ineligible for participation
in or attending any extracurricular activities. During any time that a student is excluded from
school for conduct occurring while within school jurisdiction, the student is ineligible for
participation in or attending any extracurricular activities.

E. “Destructive device” shall mean (1) any explosive, incendiary or poison gas-bomb, grenade, rocket
having a propellant charge of more than four (4) ounces, missile having an explosive or incendiary
charge of more than one-quarter ounce, mine, or device similar to any of the devices described in
the proceeding clauses; (2) any type of weapon (other than a shotgun shell which is generally
recognized as particularly suitable for sporting purposes) by whatever name known which will, or
which may be readily converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive or other
propellant, and which has any barrel with a bore of more than one-half inch in diameter; and (3)
any combination of parts either designed or intended for use in converting any device into any
destructive device or from which a destructive device may be readily assembled.

F. “Exclusion” shall mean that time period a student is excluded from school during short-term
suspension, long-term suspension, emergency exclusion, or expulsion. It may also mean that
period that the student is mandatorily reassigned.

G. “Expulsion” shall mean exclusion from all schools in the District (except the location designated
for alternative education).

135



20

H. “Extracurricular activities” shall mean all athletic teams, activities, groups, clubs, homecomings,
proms, dances, graduation ceremonies, and all other organizations or events sponsored by or
associated with the District which are not part of the District curriculum.

I. “Firearms” shall mean (1) any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or may
readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive, or by the action of
compressed gases or air, or by the action of the frame or receiver; (2) the frame or receiver of any
such weapon; (3) any firearm muffler or firearm silencer; or (4) any destructive device. Such term
does not include an antique firearm or a paint ball gun.

J. “Illegal narcotic drug” shall mean the illegal substances as defined by Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-
401(16).

K. “Ineligibility period” shall mean that period of time that a District student is prohibited from
participating in and/or attending any District extracurricular activities.

L. “Injury” shall mean damage to a person that results in a specific wound or wounds that requires
first aid treatment or a physician’s care.

M. “Long-term suspension” shall mean exclusion from all schools in the District for more than five
(5) school days but less than twenty (20) school days.

N. “Look-a-like substance” (also known as imitation controlled substance) shall mean any substance
which is not a controlled substance, but which by its appearance (including, but not limited to,
color, shape, size, markings, or packaging) or by representations made, induce or are intended to
induce, persons to believe that the substance is a controlled substance. “Look-a-like substance”
shall include any beverage containing alcohol or a beverage that is represented to contain alcohol.

O. “Medication” shall be broadly defined and shall mean all prescribed medications, over the counter
and other non-prescribed medications, and all chemical substances, compounds, homeopathic
substances, herbs, vitamins, and/or devices, which purport to aid in a person’s health or well-being
or are intended for use in the diagnoses, cure, mitigation, treatment, or prevention of diseases, or
are intended to affect the structure or any function of the body; and any device, instrument,
apparatus, implement, machine, contrivance, implant, or other similar or related article, including
any component part or accessory, which is prescribed by a physician, physician assistant, or
advanced practice registered nurse, and dispensed by a pharmacist or other person authorized by
law.

P. “Non-prescribed medication” shall mean all medications which are available without a
prescription or order from a person who is licensed under the laws of Nebraska to prescribe
medications.

Q. “On school grounds” shall mean on District property, in a vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by
the District being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle being driven for a school purpose by a
school employee or his or her designee, or at a school-sponsored activity or athletic event.

R. “One year” shall mean the three hundred sixty-five (365) days that follow the acts at issue.

S. “Prescribed medication” shall mean all medications which are available only with a prescription or
order from a person who is licensed under the laws of Nebraska to prescribe medications.

T. “Public indecency” shall mean performing, procuring, or assisting any other person to perform, in
a public place and where the conduct may reasonably be expected to be publicly viewed: (1) An
act of sexual penetration; (2) An exposure of the genitals, female breasts or buttocks of the body
done with intent to affront or alarm any person; or (3) A lewd fondling or caressing of the body of
another person of the same or opposite sex.

136



21

U. “School day” shall mean any day that school is in session and students are attending academic
courses. It does not include days that practices for extracurricular activities are held during the
summer, or weekends and vacations that occur during the academic school year.

V. “School jurisdiction” shall mean on District property, in a vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by
the District being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle being driven for a school purpose by a
school employee or his or her designee, or at a school-sponsored activity or athletic event, or any
other place where the governing law permits the District to discipline students for prohibited
conduct.

W. “Sexual assault” shall mean sexual assault in the first degree and sexual assault in the second
degree as defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-319 and 320.

X. “Sexual or intimate parts” shall mean the genital area, groin, inner thighs, buttocks or breasts.

Y. “Short-term suspension” shall mean exclusion from all schools in the District not to exceed five (5)
school days.

Z. “Under the influence” shall mean the manifestation of physical and physiological symptoms or
reactions caused by the use of any illegal narcotic drug, controlled substance, mood-altering or
behavior-affecting substance, prescribed medication by a student for whom the prescribed
medication was not prescribed, or alcohol.

AA. “Weapon” shall mean any object or material that is ordinarily or generally considered a firearm,
explosive, or weapon, including guns, firearms, pipe bombs, stun guns, B.B. guns, and pellet guns.

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-201 and 209
Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-319 and 320
Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-401
Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-502 and 504
Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-511, 518 and 519
Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-907
Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-1202 et seq.
Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-1341
Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267
Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-293

Related Rules: 5400.1 through .5
5410.1
5420.1
5470.1
5480.1
5490.1
5600.2

Rule Approved: May 7, 2001 Millard Public Schools
Revised: April 15, 2002; May 5, 2003; March 15, 2004; May 15, 2006 Omaha, NE

137



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Food Service Meal Prices

MEETING DATE: May 15, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Business

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Food Service Meal Prices – The setting of meal prices for the 2006-2007 school

year.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: In a nutshell, the recommendation is for no increase in meal prices for 2006-2007.
See the attached memo for information.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that meal prices in the District’s food service program be
established as follows: Student Breakfasts at $1.00 (Elem), $1.25 (MS), and $1.50
(HS); Student Lunches at $1.70 (Elem), $1.80 (MS), and $1.90/$2.50/$2.90 (HS);
Adult Breakfasts at $1.50 (Elem), $1.75 (MS), and $2.00 (HS); and, Adult
Lunches at $2.40 (Elem, MS, & HS) or the minimum amount required by NDE
whichever is greater.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate.

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) and Jim Stilwell,
Food Service General Manager (Sodexho)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

138



MEMORANDUM

To: K. Lutz
Re: Meal Prices
From: K. Fossen
Date: May 10, 2006

In studying the budget for food service for the coming school year, we concluded that it
would be possible to operate the program without an increase in meal prices. The relevant
information is included in the spreadsheet attached. (The information in the spreadsheet
was provided by Jim Stilwell.)

The following assumptions were made when preparing the budget estimates: (1) Personnel
related costs would increase by 5%, (2) Participation would increase by 2%, (3) Student
enrollment would increase about 1.5%, (4) Management fees would increase by the CPI as
provided in the contract, (5) Building allocations to the high schools and middle schools
would increase by 3% per student, (6) Building allocations to the elementary schools would
continue to be all of the profits from vending machines in the buildings, and (7) Ala carte
pricing guidelines would continue to be the wholesale cost divided by 38%.1

With the above assumptions, the District could operate the food service program for 2006-
2007 with a net return of around $113,917 (compared to $197,857 this year).

As you may recall from past discussions, the state department permits schools to recoup
some “indirect costs” associated with the food service program. Last year the indirect costs
were calculated to be in excess of $700,000. The net return offsets part of these indirect
costs. Also, the state department considers the amount paid to custodians as a recouping of
indirect costs. Therefore, in reviewing the attached spreadsheet, it is apparent that the
amount of indirect costs recouped in 2006 are estimated to be $354,871 (i.e., the net return
plus the amount paid for custodians). This is about half of the total amount permitted for
indirect costs.

Finally, last year the board adopted food service policies that addressed the financial
parameters to be used in setting meal prices. Policy 3715 provides as follows:

The prices established for the sale of food and beverages in the food
service program shall be such that the revenues received shall at least
offset the direct expenditures of the program.

In light of the above, it is possible for the meal prices in the food service program to remain
unchanged for 2006-2007 and still remain within the parameters established by Policy
3715. The District will continue to offset all direct costs and, additionally, will recoup
about half of the indirect costs (i.e., the net return and the custodial payments).

1 For example, if the ingredients for a cheeseburger deluxe (i.e., bun, raw meat, cheese, tomato, lettuce,
pickles, and condiments) had a wholesale cost of one dollar, the prepared cheeseburger deluxe would be sold
for $2.65 (i.e., $1.00/.38 rounded to the nearest nickel).

139



SY2006 SY2007 SY2007
No Increase $.05 Lunch Increase

Total Income 7,999,988$ 8,593,982$ 8,701,727$
1A Cash Income (WinSnap) 6,313,275$ 6,749,292$ 6,857,037$
1B Federal Reimbursement Income 1,191,977$ 1,269,905$ 1,269,905$
1C State Reimbursement Income 45,407$ 87,785$ 87,785$
1D Contract Catering Sales 136,025$ 150,000$ 150,000$
1E Ad Hoc Catering Sales 50,503$ 62,000$ 62,000$
1F Vending Commissions 202,933$ 190,000$ 190,000$
1G Full Serve Vending 47,033$ 70,000$ 70,000$
1H Earned Interest/Rebates 12,835$ 15,000$ 15,000$

ARAMARK Expenditures 4,083,008$ 4,500,065.00$ 4,500,065.00$

2A Cost Of Sales 3,081,667$ 3,388,006$ 3,388,006$

2B Management Labor 128,732$ 189,953$ 189,953$

2C Direct Expenses 716,596$ 750,160.00$ 750,160.00$
312.00 Paper and Plastics 267,984$ 313,000$ 313,000$
313.11 Waste Removal 1,154$ -$ -$
314.22 Equipment Repairs 6,414$ -$ -$
314.99 Repair & Maint - Other 22,115$ 24,000$ 24,000$
315.19 Taxes and Licenses 7,063$ 500$ 500$
316.01 Empl Veh-Opr+Rental 443$ 500$ 500$
317.00 General Insurance 6,984$ 7,700$ 7,700$
326.02 Telephone Expense 2,116$ 2,400$ 2,400$
329.04 Management Meeting 5,291$ 3,500$ 3,500$
331.00 Office Supplies 5,523$ 5,000$ 5,000$
331.02 Postage Expense 303$ 300$ 300$
331.04 EDP Supplies 5,941$ 6,300$ 6,300$
331.21 Freight Expenses 2,227$ 1,200$ 1,200$
331.31 Airborne Air Freight 262$ 480$ 480$
331.75 Technology Cost - Software 12,230$ 15,000$ 15,000$
332.00 Adv & Promotion 13,083$ 25,000$ 25,000$
332.10 Flowers & Decorations 1,205$ 1,200$ 1,200$
335.00 Professional Service 974$ 1,000$ 1,000$
344.95 Security Services 38,678$ 40,400$ 40,400$
345.01 Uniforms and Laundry 51,484$ 60,000$ 60,000$
345.10 Replacements 49,498$ 50,000$ 50,000$
345.13 Delivery Expense 209,806$ 185,000$ 185,000$
345.99 Other Operating Exp 4,478$ 6,000$ 6,000$
346.16 PC Deployment - Equipment 1,340$ 1,680$ 1,680$

Management Fees 156,013$ 171,946$ 171,946$

District Expenditures 3,302,587$ 3,530,000.00$ 3,530,000.00$
3A LABOR: Salary Accrual 128,707$
3B LABOR: Wages and Benefits 2,725,468$ 3,400,000$ 3,400,000$
3C TRANSFER: Custodial 157,014$
3D TRANSFER: Paraprofessional 195,444$
3E Other District Expense 66,383$ 70,000$ 70,000$
3F Merchant Fees 29,571$ 60,000$ 60,000$

614,393$ 563,917.00$ 671,662.00$
416,537$ 450,000$ 450,000$

197,857$ 113,917.00$ 221,662.00$

Qualifying Meals:
Projected SY06: Forecasted SY07: Meal Growth:

Breakfast Total 252,545 316,484 25.3%
Breakfast - Free 47,535 53,222 12.0%

Breakfast - Reduced 11,872 15,308 28.9%
Breakfast - Paid 193,138 247,954 28.4%

Lunch Total 2,358,375 2,504,450 6.2%
Lunch - Free 193,330 202,103 4.5%

Lunch - Reduced 87,421 91,201 4.3%
Lunch - Paid 2,077,624 2,211,146 6.4%

GROSS RETURN

Building Transfers

NET RETURN

140



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: New ELO Cutscores for 1st Grade Language Arts, 4th Grade
Reading, and 7th Grade Reading

Meeting Date: 5/15/06

Department: Planning & Evaluation

Title and Brief
Description: Each standard setting panel was made up of 21-27 teachers; these

sessions were facilitated by the Buros Institute of UNL.

Action Desired: Approval _x_ Discussion Information Only ____

Background: The “expert panel” judgements yielded the following
recommended cutscores:

Cutscore % Below
1st Grade Language Arts 41 7.6%
4th Grade Reading Comprehension 39 8.2%
7th Grade Reading Comprehension 38 8.8%

Options/Alternatives
Considered: N.A.

Recommendations: Adopt the above cutscores.

Strategic Plan
Reference: To meet the mission and the strategic goals.

Implications of
Adoption/Rejection: N.A.

Timeline: Use results to identify students for remediation in summer school
or in the fall.

Responsible
Persons: John Crawford

Superintendent’s Signature: ______________________________

141



First Grade Language Arts

7.6
12.4

35.2

44.8

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

Below Proficient Barely Proficient Proficient Beyond
Proficient

P
er

ce
n

t
o

f
S

tu
d

e
n

ts

4th Grade Reading Comprehension

8.2 10.3

41.6 39.9

0.0
5.0

10.0
15.0
20.0
25.0
30.0
35.0
40.0
45.0

Below Proficient Barely Proficient Proficient Beyond
Proficient

P
er

ce
n

t
o

f
S

tu
d

en
ts

7th Grade Reading Comprehension

8.8 10.8

53.3

27.1

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

Below
Proficient

Barely
Proficient

Proficient Beyond
Proficient

P
er

ce
nt

of
S

tu
d

en
ts

142



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
Agenda Item: Dental Plan Provider 
 
Meeting Date: May 15, 2006 
 
Department: Human Resources 
 
Title & Brief 
Description: Selection of Millard Public Schools Dental Plan Provider 
 
Action Desired: Approval  
 
Background: Since 1999, Met Life has provided dental insurance for district employees.  In February 2006, 

the Board was briefed on marketing the dental plan to determine if savings might be available. 
 

SilverStone Group (SSGI), the district’s employee benefit consultant, provided the technical 
expertise necessary to identify the needs of the district and the vendor requirements.  SSGI 
developed and distributed the RFP, then analyzed all proposals received.  Based upon their 
analysis, thee vendors were interviewed.  The interview team was comprised of Jeff Jorth and 
Scott Simon of SilverStone, Duncan Young, the district’s attorney and Steve Moore, Ken 
Fossen, Kirby Eltiste, Chris Hughes, and Michele Ellis. 
 
Based upon the proposals, interviews, and cost analysis, we are recommending the selection 
of United Concordia (UCCI) as the insurance provider for the district’s dental plan.  Savings 
to the plan for 2006-07 are projected to be $117,345, with a three-year savings of $424,947 
when compared to current expenditures. 
 

Options And  
Alternatives: Retain Met Life or select United Healthcare of the Midlands. 
 
Recommendation: Approval of United Concordia (UCCI) as the Dental Insurance Provider for the Millard Public 

School employees, effective September 1, 2006. 
 
Responsible Person: Steve Moore 
 
Approval: ______________________________ 
 

143



144



Three-Year Dental Cost Summary

 Current Renewal
 September 1, 2005 September 1, 2006 Increase September 1, 2007 Increase September 1, 2008 Increase
Fully Insured Premium $1,055,535 $996,048 -6% $1,075,732 8% $1,183,305 10%
Annual Savings versus Current  ($59,487)

 Current  
 September 1, 2005 September 1, 2006 Increase September 1, 2007 Increase September 1, 2008 Increase
Fully Insured Premium $1,055,535 $993,951 $993,951 0% $1,073,467 8%
Reduction for Packaged Pricing ($23,700)   
Revised UHC Annual Cost $970,251 -8% $993,951 $1,073,467

Annual Savings versus Current ($85,284)
Annual Savings versus Met Life Renewal ($25,797) ($81,781) ($109,838)
Estimated Three Year Savings ($217,416)

 Current  
 September 1, 2005 September 1, 2006 Increase September 1, 2007 Increase September 1, 2008 Increase
Fully Insured Premium $1,055,535 $938,190 -11% $938,190 0% $1,013,245 8%
Annual Savings versus Current

Annual Savings versus Current ($117,345)
Annual Savings versus Met Life Renewal ($57,858) ($137,542) ($170,060)
Estimated Three Year Savings versus Met Life Renewal ($365,460)
Estimated Three Year Savings versus Current ($424,947)

Footnotes
MetLife provided a Cap of 8% effective September 1, 2007 and 10% for September 1, 2008
Assumed Third Year Dental Increase of 8%

 

METLIFE

UNITED HEALTHCARE (UHC)

UNITED CONCORDIA (UCCI)

1

145



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
Agenda Item: Health Plan - Self-Funded Third Party Administrator 
 
Meeting Date: May 15, 2006 
 
Department: Human Resources 
 
Title & Brief 
Description: Millard Public Schools Health Plan Third Party Administrator Renewal. 
 
Action Desired: Approval  
 
Background: In 1999 the Board approved changing from a fully funded health insurance plan to a self-

funded plan.  The District pays all eligible claims from its Health Plan Fund and makes fixed 
monthly payments to a third party administrator for claims processing and discounted 
healthcare provider network.  Since the District is assuming the risk, it also purchases stop-
loss insurance to limit this risk.  The District’s plan is financially sound and cost effective.  In 
February 2006, the Board was briefed on marketing the administration and stop loss 
reinsurance of the plan to determine if additional savings were available. 

 
SilverStone Group (SSGI), the district’s employee benefit consultant, provided the technical 
expertise necessary to identify the needs of the district and the vendor requirements.  SSGI 
developed and distributed the RFP, then analyzed all proposals received.  Based upon their 
analysis, two vendors were interviewed.  The interview team was comprised of Jeff Jorth and 
Scott Simon of SilverStone, Duncan Young, the district’s attorney and Steve Moore, Ken 
Fossen, Kirby Eltiste, Chris Hughes, and Michele Ellis. 
 
Based upon the proposals, interviews, and cost analysis, we are recommending the selection 
of Mutual of Omaha as the third party administrator and reinsurance provider for the district’s 
health plan.  Savings to the plan for 2006-07 are projected to be $771,990, with a three-year 
savings of $1,822,804 when compared to current expenditures. 
 

Options And  
Alternatives: Retain United Healthcare of the Midlands. 
 
Recommendation: Approval of Mutual of Omaha as the Third Party Administrator for the Millard Public School 

Employee Health Plan, effective September 1, 2006. 
 
Responsible Person: Steve Moore 
 
Approval: ______________________________ 
 

146



Millard Public Schools 
Executive Summary – Committee Meeting 
May 8, 2006 

SilverStone Group  Page 1 of 2 

 
 
The following report will summarize the Millard Public Schools’ (MPS) Medical and Dental 
renewals and the market analysis that SilverStone Group (SSGI) has gathered on the district’s 
behalf.  
 
 
Introduction: 
 

• SSGI was engaged as the consultant of record in January 2006. 
• Planning & Strategies Meeting conducted in early February to project renewal cost and 

discuss recommendations for future strategies. 
• Based upon current fixed cost pricing, it was determined that MPS’s rates were above 

market benchmarks and a recommendation to conduct a Request for Proposal (RFP) was 
provided. 

• MPS’s medical and prescription drug program continues to run extremely favorable.  
SSGI provided a claim projection based on claims data through February 2006.  The 
expected claim projection for the period of September 1, 2006 through August 31, 2007 
is estimated at $13,492,719.   

• A recommendation letter was delivered to MPS to formally proceed with an RFP. 
• MPS provided authorization to conduct the RFP. 

 
Vendor Criteria: 
 

• Analysis of Provider Networks and Discounts (Medical and Dental)  
• Reinsurance Contract Terms:   

o Finalize rates a minimum of 90 days prior to effective date 
o Ability to provide a 24/12 reinsurance contract with no Lasering 
o Immediate Specific Reimbursement 
o Financial Stability of Reinsurance Carrier 
o Ability to match $5 Million Specific and Aggregate maximums 
o Ability to provide renewals 90-120 days in advance 

• Experience with employers the size and complexity of MPS 
• Total Care Management (Integrated Utilization Review, Case and Disease Management, 

Predicative Modeling and Wellness Solutions). 
• Legal and Regulatory Compliance (HIPAA Privacy & Security, COBRA, Medicare, Etc.) 
• Pharmacy Benefit Manager (PBM): 

o Discounts, Dispensing Fees, Rebates, Predictive Model, Member Education, Etc. 
• Technology:  Consumer Support Tools, Employee Self Service, Explanation of Benefits, 

Provider Directories, Integration with PBM, Etc. 
• Claims Reporting (Online and Interactive) 
• Customer Service (Member and Employer) 
 

147



Millard Public Schools 
Executive Summary – Committee Meeting 
May 8, 2006 

SilverStone Group  Page 2 of 2 

Vendors selected to respond to RFP: 
 

• Medical/Prescription Drug Program:   Aetna, Blue Cross/Blue Shield (BC/BS) of 
Nebraska, Coventry, HDM Benefit Solutions, Mutual of Omaha, Principal and United 
Healthcare (UHC).    BC/BS was the only vendor that declined to quote.   

• Dental Program:  Aetna, Ameritas, BC/BS, MetLife, Principal, United Concordia 
(UCCI) and UHC.  BC/BS declined to quote.   Aetna only provided a self-funded 
proposal.  All other vendors provided both a fully insured and self-funded proposal.   

 
Review of Market Analysis and Renewals: 
 

• SSGI summarized RFP responses 
• Delivered renewals for UHC (Medical) and MetLife (Dental) 
• Based on the RFP analysis, MPS elected to interview the following finalists: 

o Medical:   UHC and Mutual of Omaha 
o Dental:  MetLife, UHC and UCCI 

 
Finalist Evaluations: 
 

• Subsequent to the finalist interviews, an objective Vendor Evaluation was developed (See 
attached). 

• The Vendor Evaluation focused on the following areas of importance: Cost, Provider 
Networks, Disruption and Customer Service. 

• A Three-Year Financial Analysis of Fixed Costs was also included in the Vendor 
Evaluation (See attached). 

• Committee Meeting with Board and Administration was scheduled to deliver RFP 
evaluation. 

 
 

 
 
 

148



149



Three-Year Medical Fixed Cost Summary

Current Renewal
 September 1, 2005 September 1, 2006 Increase September 1, 2007 Increase September 1, 2008 Increase
Administration $888,189 $704,352 -21% $731,920 4% $760,316 4%

Specific Stop Loss $1,201,738 $928,724 -23% $1,068,032 15% $1,228,237 15%

Aggregate Stop Loss $36,004 $36,004 0% $41,405 15% $47,616 15%

Annual Totals $2,125,931 $1,669,080 -21% $1,841,358 10% $2,036,169 11%
Annual Savings versus Current ($456,851)    

Current
 September 1, 2005 September 1, 2006 Increase September 1, 2007 Increase September 1, 2008 Increase
Administration $888,189 $526,237 -41% $617,083 17% $655,150 6%
Run-Out Administrative Cost  $275,000   
Total Administration $888,189 $801,237 -10% $617,083  $655,150

Specific Stop Loss $1,201,738 $523,137 -56% $653,922 25% $817,402 25%

Aggregate Stop Loss $36,004 $29,567 -18% $36,958 25% $46,198 25%

Annual Totals $2,125,931 $1,353,941 -36% $1,307,963 -3% $1,518,750 16%
Annual Savings versus Current ($771,990)
Annual Savings Versus UHC Renewal ($315,139) ($533,395) ($517,419)
Estimated Three Year Savings Versus UHC Renewal ($1,365,953)
Estimated Three Year Savings Versus Current ($1,822,804)

Assumed 15% increase to Specific and Aggregate premium for UnitedHealhtcare
Assumed 25% increase to Specific and Aggregate premium for Mutual of Omaha

MUTUAL OF OMAHA

UNITEDHEALTHCARE

1

150



AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Recommended for Hire

MEETING DATE: May 15, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

TITLE & DESCRIPTION: Assistant Principal, North High School

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: We interviewed for an assistant principal opening at Millard North on
April 18. Two weeks later, we had another assistant principal opening.
We decided to recommend the next highest ranked candidate from the
original pool. The original position was advertised in Millard’s job
postings and Careerlink. Sixteen applications were received (six from
within the district and ten from outside the district.) The applications
were reviewed by Dr. Eltiste and Dr. Werkheiser. The original
interview teams included Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Nancy Nelson, Lori Bartels,
Lori Jasa, Kraig Lofquist, Sharon Comisar-Langdon, Dr. George
Conrad, Betsy Belmont(Parent), Larry Wooster(Parent), Nick
Schroeder(Student), Rhonda Betzold(Teacher), Mindy Reed(Teacher),
Vince Lenz(Teacher), Susan Marlatt, Greg Tiemann, Dr. Rick
Werkheiser. I am recommending the following individual for the
position.

Jay Dostal Recommended for North High School Assistant Principal position. Jay
is currently a Language Arts and PE teacher. He is also an Assistant
Athletic Director at West High School. Jay has been in his current
teaching position since 2001.

Education: Bachelor’s Degree from University of Nebraska Kearney in 2001.
Master’s Degree from University of Nebraska Omaha in 2004.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PERSON RECOMMENDING: Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:

151



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: May 15, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: Personnel items: (1) Hires, (2) Leave of Absence, and (3)
Resignations.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: NA

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION
OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________

152



May 15, 2006

RESIGNATIONS

Recommend: the following resignations be accepted:

1. Rebecca Noble – Vocal Music teacher at Willowdale Elementary School. She is resigning for
another job in education. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

2. Amy Hines – Social Studies teacher (.5 FTE) and ELL teacher (.5 FTE) at South High School.
She is resigning for employment outside education. Resignation is effective at the end of the
2005/06 school year.

3. Jeffrey Story – High School Assistant Principal at North Nigh School. He is resigning to take
another education job. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

4. Marsha Lehn – Special Education Preschool Teacher at Cody Elementary School. She is
resigning for another education job. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

5. Laura Davidson – First grade teacher at Harvey Oaks Elementary School. She is resigning due to
family reasons. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

6. Jodie Kennedy – Special Education Resource teacher at Montclair Elementary School. She is
resigning for personal reasons. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

7. Katherine Gigstead – Speech Pathologist at Norris Elementary School. She is resigning for
personal reasons. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

8. Mary Pat Martin – Third grade teacher at Black Elk Elementary School. She is resigning for
personal reasons. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

153



May 15, 2006

LEAVE OF ABSENCE REQUESTS

Recommend: the following extended leave without pay requests be approved:

1. Jessica Kunz – Sixth grade teacher at Beadle Middle School. She is requesting a
Leave of Absence for the 2006/07 school year for family reasons.

2. Sally Spencer – Fifth grade teacher at Ezra Elementary School. She is requesting a
Leave of Absence for the 2006/07 school year for family reasons.

154



May 15, 2006

TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE

Recommend: the following teachers be hired for the 2006/07 school year:

1. Jennifer Jackson – BA – University of Nebraska at Omaha. Math teacher at Kiewit Middle
School.

2. Martin Yolanda – MA – University of Nebraska at Omaha. Middle School Counselor at Andersen
Middle School. Previous Exp: Omaha Public Schools (1974/2006).

3. Amy Goldsmith – MA – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. Special Education Resource teacher
at Reeder Elementary School. Previous Exp: Olathe, KS (2004/2006).

4. Jennifer Kirksey – BA – College of St. Mary. Math teacher at West High School. Previous Exp:
Omaha Public Schools (2004/2006).

5. Angela Smith – BA – Doane College. Math teacher at West High School.

6. Stephenie Teague – BA – Brigham Young University. Science teacher at South High School.
Previous Exp: Millard Public Schools (1993/1995).

7. Tyler Hottovy – BA – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. Vocal Music teacher at Norris
Elementary School. Previous Exp: Houston, TX (2005/2006).

8. Amina Bassia – BA –- University of Nebraska at Omaha. Third grade teacher at Wheeler
Elementary School.

9. Denise Larson – MA – University of Nebraska at Omaha. Speech Pathologist with location to be
determined.

10. Matt Shrader – BA – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. Industrial Tech teacher at North High
School.

11. Robert Marceau – MA+36 – University of Nebraska at Omaha. Special Education Behavior
Disorder teacher at Central Middle School. Previous Exp: Boys Town (1987/2006).

12. Laura Wirth – MA – University of Nebraska at Omaha. Speech Pathologist with location to be
determined.

13. Deborah Long – Doctorate – Southern Illinois. Special Education Resource teacher at North High
School. Previous Exp: Wahoo, NE (1992/2001); Omaha Public Schools (2004/2006).

14. Sarah Clatterbuck – BA – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. Second grade at Reeder Elementary.

15. Alisa Pinkerton – BA – University of Nebraska at Kearney. Preschool teacher at Neihardt
Elementary School. Previous Exp: Houston, TX (2004/2006).

155



The following individuals were employed with Millard Public Schools during the 2005/06 school
year on a short term contract. They are now being offered a regular contract for the 2006/07
school year.

1. Jessica Wells – MA+24 – University of Nebraska at Omaha. School Psychologist with Millard
Public Schools. Previous Exp: Millard Public Schools (2005/06).

2. Lindsay Rogers – BA – University of Nebraska at Omaha. Second grade teacher at Ezra
Elementary School. Previous Exp: Millard Public Schools (2005/06).

156



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Construction Report

MEETING DATE: May 15, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Construction Report – A report from the District’s construction management firm

with regard to the progress on projects related to the 2005 bond issue.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval Discussion Information Only x .

BACKGROUND: The District has engaged the services of Magnum Resources, Inc. (RMI) to act as
the construction manager for the District’s construction/renovation projects related
to the 2005 bond issue.

Don Mohlman (RMI) will be present at the meeting to present the construction
update (see attached) and to answer questions.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: n/a

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: n/a

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Don Mohlman (RMI) and Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General
Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

157



May 2006
Vol. 11

158



Millard Public Schools
Construction Progress Report No. 11
May 2006

Index

I. Executive Summary Page 1 - 2

 Administrative Overview
 Project(s) Overview
 Budget Overview

II. Project Status Report Page 3 - 7

 Buell Stadium
 South High School
 North High School
 West High School
 Alternative High School
 Beadle Middle School
 Elementary #24
 Elementary #25
 Ackerman Elementary

III. Master Control Budget Page 8 - 9

 Control Budget Summary
 Detailed Project Summary

IV. Master Control Schedule Page 10 - 11

 Project Milestone Schedule
 Summer 2006; Move Schedule

159



1

Millard Public Schools
Construction Progress Report No. 11
May 2006

Executive Summary

Administrative Overview

 Continuation of weekly meetings with the Bond Committee consisting of Ken Fossen,
Mark Feldhausen, Ed Rockwell, Kim Thompson, Bob Snowden, Don Mohlman,
Randy Schroeder, and Ron Hager.

 Ackerman Elementary has been awarded to Lueder Construction.

 Beadle Middle School is the only remaining project to bid for commencement of
construction this year.

 A meeting for all bond issue and capital improvement projects scheduled for work
during the summer of 2006 was held with principles from each project site. The
purpose of the meeting was to communicate and coordinate all packing and moving
that will be necessary to prepare for commencement of construction (reference the
enclosed move schedule).

 In addition to Elementary #24, construction is in progress at all three high schools.

Project(s) Overview

 Buell Stadium –Grading work at the upper field area will commence in June by
CYC as the General Contractor.

 South High School: Phase 1 –Complete

 South High School: Phase 2 –Construction in progress at the exterior parking lot
and interior restrooms.

160



2

 North High School –Construction in progress at the exterior parking lot.

 West High School –Construction in progress with site clearing.

 Alternative High School –Site selection is in progress by the District.

 Beadle Middle School –Bids scheduled for receipt on May 23rd.

 Elementary #24 –Street construction is complete. Footings and foundations for the
building are in progress.

 Elementary #25 –Contract Documents approved with receipt of bids anticipated in
the fall of 2006.

 Ackerman Elementary –Construction contract has been awarded to Lueder
Construction.

Budget Overview

 With the award of Ackerman, the project contingency remains at approximately $4.9
million.

 Final adjustments (approximately $600,000) will reduce the overall contingency
balance as a result of land procurement and development costs (grading, street
improvements, utilities, and water main extension fees) for Elementary #24.

 Sixty-four percent (64%) of the bond issue projects have now been bid and awarded.

161



3

Millard Public Schools
Construction Progress Report No. 11
May 2006

Project Status Report

HIGH SCHOOLS

 Buell Stadium –DLR Group / Nemaha Landscaping / Dactronics / CYC
o Summer work for upper field grading to commence on June 22, 2006

 South High School –DLR Group / Lueder Construction
o Construction started April 1, 2006
o East side parking lot in final grading stage.
o Concrete paving at East side to commence May 15.
o 1st phase restroom remodel in final stages.
o Foundation work completed at addition.
o North parking lot concrete completed.

South High School - parking lot final grading (East side) –May 8, 2006

162



4

South High School - foundation work complete at addition - May 8, 2006

 North High School –Schemmer Associates / W. Boyd Jones Construction
o Construction started April 3, 2006
o 1st phase of restroom renovations nearing completion
o Foundation work completed at addition.

North High School - underground utility work at addition in progress - May 8, 2006

163



5

 West High School –Prochaska Associates / Meco-Henne Construction
o Construction started on April 3, 2006.
o Site utility work in final stages.

West High School - site utilities work in progress - May 8, 2006

 Alternative High School - BCDM
o Tentative schedule for project implementation is 4th quarter 2006

MIDDLE SCHOOL

 Beadle Middle School - BCDM
o Projected bid date of May 23, 2006.
o Contractor award date of June 5, 2006.
o Anticipated construction start date of June 12, 2006.
o Anticipated occupancy in fall of 2007.

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

 Elementary #24 –Schemmer Associates / Heimes Excavating / ConStruct, Inc.
o Street construction completed
o Footing construction at lower level completed.
o Foundation work on upper level in progress.
o Well field work in progress.
o Underground plumbing work under way.

164



6

Elementary #24 –building footing excavation work –April 10, 2006

Elementary #24 - well field installation in progress –May 8, 2006

165



7

 Elementary #25 –DLR Group
o Pre-grading has been completed by the Developer
o Completed pre-grading compliance survey with DLR Group
o Site utilities and street paving anticipated to be completed by Developer in

early Summer of 2006
o Approval of Construction Documents completed on April 3, 2006

 Ackerman Elementary –Schemmer Associates / Lueder Construction
o Awarded General Construction contract to Lueder Construction Company.
o Pre-construction meeting to be held May 10, 2006.
o Construction to commence on June 5, 2006.
o Anticipated phase I work to be completed on August 1, 2006.

166



Original Budget
With Addit'l

Funding Current Budget Total
Variance

Land
Land Cost 3,750,270 3,750,270 3,750,270 -
Feasibility Study 25,500 25,500 25,500 -

Technology 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 -
-

Construction -
Contractor -

General 42,707,291 44,357,291 41,606,580 2,750,711
Hazardous Material 472,500 472,500 442,500 30,000
District Procured -

Metal drs and frms 27,916 (27,916)
Casework 69,340 (69,340)
RTU 54,623 (54,623)
Buell Timing System 73,180 (73,180)
Buell Field Grading 35,920 (35,920)

- -
Consultant -

Project Mgr 854,146 886,646 973,600 (86,954)
Architect 3,278,173 3,398,477 3,170,769 227,708
Environmental - - 30,000 (30,000)
Survey 300,333 300,333 300,333 -
Soils - -
Testing - -

Spcl Insp - -
Conductivity - -

Commissioning - -
HVAC 107,396 107,396 107,396 -
Roofing - -

Support Costs - -
Builders Risk - - - -
Printing 125,534 125,534 125,534 -
Software Platform - - 85,000 (85,000)
Reimbursable - - - -

Constructware 10,000 (10,000)
Advertising for bids - - -
Buell Stadium Equip - - 25,000 (25,000)

Contingency 2,328,588 2,328,588 2,328,588 -
PM Award (86,954)

Addit'l Services -
AE Award 268,061

Addit'l Services (40,353)
Constructware (85,000)

Reimbursable (10,000)
Buell

Award 253,899
Addit'l Funding 74,471 74,471 74,471
Equipment (25,000)
Timing System (73,180)
Field Grading (35,920)
Prev Change Orders (72,420)

South HS: Ph1
Prev Change Orders (168)

South HS: Ph2
Award 213,002
Prev Change Orders -
Smoke / Fire dampers (12,994)
Rem existg piers (3,009)

Elem 24
Award 113,247

North HS
Award 1,336,595
Prev Change Orders -
Rem existg sidewalk (899)
Rem existg stoops (1,750)

West HS
Award 767,075

Ackerman Elem
Award 6,254

Furniture / Fixture / Equipment -
Moveable Furnishings 1,311,307 1,311,307 1,311,307 -
Moveable Equipment 219,291 219,291 219,291 -
Comp; Phones; Copiers; Fax 2,192,015 2,192,015 2,192,015 -

Regulatory Fees / Assessments 327,656 327,656 327,656 -
-

78,000,000 79,877,275 79,877,275 2,584,957

Original Contgy 2,328,588
Buell Stadium Grants 74,471 (Contg'y) Current Contgy 4,913,545
HVAC at South High School 1,802,804 (Constr - 1,650,000 + PM - 32,500 + Arch - 102,304)

79,877,275

Millard Public Schools
05.15.06

2005 Bond Issue Funding

Additional Funding

8

167



Original Budget
With Addit'l

Funding Ackerman Elementary 24 Elementary 25 Beadle MS North HS
South HS
Phase 2

South HS
Phase 1 West HS Alt HS Buell Stadium Future HS Current Budget Total

07.150.05.01 07.162.05.01 07.163.05.01 07.250.05.01 07.342.05.01 07.340.05.02 07.340.05.01 07.344.05.01 07.333.05.01 07.300.05.01 07.346.05.01 Variance

Land
Land Cost 3,750,270 3,750,270 441,300 441,300 661,770 2,205,900 3,750,270 -
Feasibility Study 25,500 25,500 4,500 4,500 6,500 10,000 25,500 -

Technology 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 -
-

Construction -
Contractor -

General 42,707,291 44,357,291 2,268,700 6,470,500 6,474,000 2,521,365 4,266,249 6,780,803 80,168 4,707,000 6,900,000 1,137,795 - 41,606,580 2,750,711
Hazardous Material 472,500 472,500 35,000 25,000 289,284 93,216 442,500 30,000
District Procured -

Metal drs and frms 24,718 3,198 27,916 (27,916)
Casework 69,340 69,340 (69,340)
RTU 54,623 54,623 (54,623)
Buell Timing System 73,180 73,180 (73,180)
Buell Field Grading 35,920 35,920 (35,920)

- -
Consultant -

Project Mgr 854,146 886,646 89,000 90,000 108,700 107,800 128,200 160,700 128,200 123,000 38,000 - 973,600 (86,954)
Architect 3,278,173 3,398,477 201,889 290,343 420,353 187,000 466,497 595,304 425,883 518,000 65,500 3,170,769 227,708
Environmental - - 30,000 30,000 (30,000)
Survey 300,333 300,333 19,416 50,350 49,202 19,162 35,000 35,000 39,763 52,440 300,333 -
Soils - -
Testing - -

Spcl Insp - -
Conductivity - -

Commissioning - -
HVAC 107,396 107,396 7,766 20,140 20,069 7,816 8,548 4,697 16,970 21,390 - 107,396 -
Roofing - -

Support Costs - -
Builders Risk - - - -
Printing 125,534 125,534 15,000 15,000 17,000 12,000 15,000 15,000 16,500 17,000 3,034 - 125,534 -
Software Platform - - 85,000 (85,000)
Reimbursable - - - -

Constructware 10,000 (10,000)
Advertising for bids - - -
Buell Stadium Equip - - 25,000 25,000 (25,000)

Contingency 2,328,588 2,328,588 2,328,588 -
PM Award (86,954)

Addit'l Services -
AE Award 268,061

Addit'l Services (40,353)
Constructware (85,000)

Reimbursable (10,000)
Buell

Award 253,899
Addit'l Funding 74,471 74,471 74,471
Equipment (25,000)
Timing System (73,180)
Field Grading (35,920)
Prev Change Orders (72,420)

South HS: Ph1
Prev Change Orders (168)

South HS: Ph2
Award 213,002
Prev Change Orders -
Smoke / Fire dampers (12,994)
Rem existg piers (3,009)

Elem 24
Award 113,247

North HS
Award 1,336,595
Prev Change Orders -
Rem existg sidewalk (899)
Rem existg stoops (1,750)

West HS
Award 767,075

Ackerman Elem
Award 6,254

Furniture / Fixture / Equipment -
Moveable Furnishings 1,311,307 1,311,307 - 269,933 265,434 103,376 113,037 62,115 214,512 282,900 - 1,311,307 -
Moveable Equipment 219,291 219,291 14,621 37,917 37,549 14,624 15,991 26,819 31,750 40,020 - 219,291 -
Comp; Phones; Copiers; Fax 2,192,015 2,192,015 85,020 384,000 375,492 199,188 193,025 106,050 366,240 483,000 - 2,192,015 -

Regulatory Fees / Assessments 327,656 327,656 24,033 62,324 61,503 23,953 26,196 14,393 49,704 65,550 327,656 -
-

78,000,000 79,877,275 2,909,126 8,136,307 8,275,102 3,196,284 5,292,743 8,090,165 206,582 5,996,522 9,171,570 1,378,429 2,215,900 79,877,275 2,584,957

Original Contgy 2,328,588
Buell Stadium Grants 74,471 (Contg'y) Current Contgy 4,913,545
HVAC at South High School 1,802,804 (Constr - 1,650,000 + PM - 32,500 + Arch - 102,304)

79,877,275

Millard Public Schools
05.15.06

2005 Bond Issue Funding

Additional Funding

Control Budget Detailed Summary 051506

9

168



May June

Bond Committee Meetings 4, 11, 18, 25 1, 8, 15, 22, 29
Board Committee of the Whole Meetings 8 12
Board Meetings 1, 15 5, 19

Project Receive Bids Project

Commencement Bond Committee Bond Committee School Board Bond Committee School Board Bond Committee School Board Completion

Elem Schools
Ackerman 3-Aug-05 16-Nov-05 12-Jan-06 16-Jan-06 23-Feb-06 20-Mar-06 18-Apr-06 20-Apr-06 01-May-06 01-Aug-07

Elementary #24

Overlot Grading 08-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 14-Sep-05 15-Sep-05 19-Sep-05 15-Feb-06

Public Improv. 08-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 25-Oct-05 27-Oct-05 07-Nov-05 08-Jun-06

Building 08-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 25-Oct-05 27-Oct-05 07-Nov-05 01-Jun-07

Elementary #25 19-Aug-05 17-Nov-05 15-Dec-05 16-Jan-06 23-Mar-06 03-Apr-06 01-Jun-08

Middle Schools
Beadle MS 12-Dec-05 09-Mar-06 06-Mar-06 06-Apr-06 17-Apr-06 23-May-06 25-May-06 05-Jun-06 01-Jun-07

High Schools
Buell Stadium 28-Aug-05

North HS 21-Jul-05 01-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 01-Dec-05 19-Dec-05 07-Feb-06 09-Feb-05 20-Mar-06 01-Jul-07

South HS

Phase I 2005 26-May-05 06-Jun-05 07-Jun-05 09-Jun-05 14-Jun-05 05-Aug-05

Phase II - 2006 14-Jul-05 11-Aug-05 15-Aug-05 20-Oct-05 21-Nov-05 24-Jan-06 26-Jan-06 13-Feb-06 01-Jul-07

West HS 11-Aug-05 06-Oct-05 17-Oct-05 29-Dec-05 16-Jan-06 02-Mar-06 09-Mar-06 20-Mar-06 01-Jul-07

Alternative HS 1-Jul-06 01-Jun-08

NOTE: Dates shown in light blue/italics are tentative projections to be confirmed; dates shown in dark blue/italics are Board action dates

Design Development Contract Documents Contract AwardProject
Program /

Schematic Design

Board Schedule 051506

10

169



Last Day
Students Holiday

Last Day
Teachers

Responsibility Support Contact ASAP 26-May 27-May 28-May 29-May 30-May 31-May 1-Jun 2-Jun 3-Jun 4-Jun 5-Jun
Fri Sat Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun Mon

Order packing materials Principal Mike Maas
Packing labels Principal Bob Snowden
Pack classroom Principal Teacher see blw see blw
Remove personal items Principal Teacher see blw see blw
Library pack Principal Donna Helvering Early
Library stck moves Principal Bob Snowden
Technology moves Principal Mark Feldhausen see blw see blw
Classroom moves Bob Snowden Kim Thompsen Furniture Furniture

Unidentified items (disposal) Bob Snowden Ken Fossen

Bond Projects
Ackerman Ed Rockwell Ron Hager TP 4:00 SP / TP TP / SP SD* / SSM SSM
Beadle MS Ed Rockwell Ron Hager SP SD SP TP SSM beginning June 7th -->>

North HS Kim Thompson Randy Schroeder SP SD* TP / SP SSM SSM SSM SSM CONSTR
South HS Kim Thompson Randy Schroeder TP 4:00 SP / TP TP / SP SD / SSM SSM
West HS Kim Thompson Randy Schroeder SD CONSTR

Capital Projects
Ezra Kim Thompson Ed Rockwell SP TP / SP SD* / SSM SSM SSM SSM SSM CONSTR
Neihardt Kim Thompson Ed Rockwell SP TP / SP SD* / SSM SSM SSM SSM SSM CONSTR
Rockwell Kim Thompson Ed Rockwell SP TP / SP SD* / SSM SSM SSM SSM SSM CONSTR
Willowdale Kim Thompson Ed Rockwell SP TP / SP SD* / SSM SSM SSM SSM SSM CONSTR

Staff Development - On Site SD
Staff Development - Off Site SD*
Technololgy Pack TP
Staff Pack SP
Support Services Move SSM

Millard Public Schools
Master Schedule for End of Year 2006

CONSTRUCTION

CONSTRUCTION

Start Construction

Task

MPS Move Schedule 05.15.06
11

170



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Telephone Prefix Change

MEETING DATE: 15 May 2006

DEPARTMENT: Technology Division

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Telephone Prefix Change

ACTION DESIRED: Information X

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

On January 16, 2006, the Board of Education approved the installation of a Nortel Voice over
Internet Protocol (VoIP) telephone system for the school district. That project is well underway
with installation of core switching equipment to begin this month. The installation of telephones
and the migration of the District’s telephone services from Qwest to Cox are scheduled for June
to September.

In the process of planning for a revised District “dialing plan” (four digit dialing from building to
building, 9 for out-line, classroom dialing, etc.) and projecting future needs, we have
encountered a number of problems associated with the fact that the District uses fourteen
prefixes, five primary prefixes (895, 894, 691, 594, 452) and nine secondary prefixes (including
596, 593, 537, 339, 861, 896, 330, 697, 891), emanating from three or more telephone processing
centers within the metro area.

In discussing options for the future, it has come to our attention that it is possible to put all
district buildings/telephone numbers on a single prefix by acquiring the rights to a minimum of
5000 numbers. This DID Block of Numbers (Quantity 200) has the TN Range of XXX-1XXX,
2XXX, 6XXX, 7XXX, and 8XXX for a total of 5000 numbers.

Acquiring a DID block of numbers with one prefix would assist the District in standardizing a
telephone dial plan while implementing the new telephone system. It would also provide the
District with needed telephone numbers as services are expanded to include:

 two additional elementary schools,
 one non-traditional high school, and
 a fourth comprehensive high school.

171



Other services under consideration that could be facilitated by the acquisition of a single prefix
and a block of numbers include:

 providing voice mail for all staff (2000+) enhancing parent-teacher communications, and
 providing a telephone in every classroom for safety and security (call-out capabilities,

call-in processed through office number).

The change to a single prefix would not require the wholesale change of all district numbers. It
would be possible, with the acquisition of the right block of numbers to, in most instances, retain
the final four digits of the current seven digit numbers. There would only be about 10 conflicts
out of the 1577 active district telephone numbers and none of these are primary building or office
numbers.

Such a significant change would require a full year of transition to account for
1. approval of a block of 5,000 to 10,000 numbers from the North American Numbering

Plan Administration,
2. acquisition of the single prefix and a block of numbers from Cox Business Services,
3. community and business notification, and
4. changes to internal and external publications.

The earliest such a change could take place would be June-July 2007. This would be just in time
for the opening of Elementary #24.

The cost for a block of 5000 numbers is $750 per month/$9,000 per year while a block of 10,000
numbers (the entire prefix) would be $1,500 per month/$18,000 per year. A portion of these
costs would eventually replace the current monthly cost for existing numbers.

Given the benefits and opportunity, the Technology Division has formally requested from both
Cox Business Services and the North American Dialing Plan Administration rights to a
minimum block of numbers (5000 numbers—series 1XXX, 2XXX, 6XXX, 7XXX, and 8XXX)
under a single prefix.

RECOMMENDATION:

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Dr. Mark Feldhausen

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

172



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: NCLB Qualified Teachers

Meeting Date: May 15th, 2006

Department Human Resources & Special Education

Title and Brief
Description: NCLB Compliance for Highly Qualified Teachers

Action Desired: Report Only

Background: NCLB Act of 2001 required states and individual districts to document
that teachers of core subject areas be “highly qualified.” While
Nebraska has viewed it’s own Rule 10 as meeting the requirements of
a highly objective uniform state standard of evaluation (HOUSSE)
document, the U. S. Department of Education has required Nebraska
to develop a HOUSSE document separate from Rule 10 for current
teachers. The HOUSSE document has been developed and applied to
current regular education teachers this year. The document will be
applied to current special education teachers in 06-07 as directed by
NDE. Millard Public Schools continues to meet or exceed Federal and
State standards for highly qualified staff.

Options/Alternatives
Considered: N/A

Recommendations: Report Only

Strategic Plan
Reference: N/A

Implications of
Adoption/Rejection: N/A

Timeline: On Going

Responsible
Persons: George Conrad & Charlene Snyder

Superintendent’s Signature: ______________________________________________

173



No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 – Highly Qualified Teachers

Along with other sections of NCLB, provisions include guidance for the expectations on
state departments of education (SEA’s) and local school districts (LEA’s) to provide for
Highly Qualified Teachers. The expectations outlined in NCLB require that SEA’s
ensure that all teachers in the LEA are highly qualified by 2005-06.

The expectation for highly qualified teachers was established for teachers who taught
“core academic subjects.” The term “core academic subjects” means English, reading or
language arts, mathematics, science, foreign languages, civics and government,
economics, arts, history, and geography.

NCLB guidance continued to define the expectations placed on SEA’s to recognize the
qualifications for teachers new to the profession as well as current teachers. SEA’s were
given the option of developing a method by which current teachers could demonstrate
competency in each subject they taught on the basis of a “highly, objective, uniform state
standard of evaluation (HOUSSE).

Until February of 2005, the Nebraska Department of Education held the position that the
provisions of Rule 10 for School Accreditation served as the state’s HOUSSE document.
As a result of a visitation by Federal Officials to a number of Nebraska Districts, NDE
was directed to create a separate HOUSSE document for measuring the quality of current
teachers. At the same time NDE was directed to work with colleges and universities with
teacher education programs to demonstrate that teachers new to the profession were also
meeting the standards of “highly qualified” as outlined in NCLB.

In the Spring and Summer of 2005, the Nebraska Department of Education created a
statewide taskforce of educators to develop a HOUSSE document. Charlene Snyder and
George Conrad requested the opportunity and were selected to serve on the taskforce.
NDE and the taskforce also identified a need to differentiate the roles of special education
teachers. NDE determined that it was necessary to collect additional information from
local school districts before applying the use of the new HOUSSE document with special
education teachers. The HOUSSE document would be used with all current regular
education teachers during the 05-06 school year and would be applied to all current
special education teachers during the 06-07 school year.

In the fall of 2005 all Nebraska school districts were expected to complete HOUSSE
documents for all regular education teachers teaching outside their endorsement areas.
Using the NDE Curriculum Report from 04-05, Millard Public Schools identified 13
regular education teachers (far less than the 70-90 teachers expected by state average
calculations). Informational meetings were held and all identified regular education
teachers, with the support of the Human Resources Department, completed the state’s
HOUSSE documents. All 13 teachers exceeded the requirements for NCLB
qualification.

At the same time, Charlene Snyder provided informational sessions and a copy of the
HOUSSE document to current special education teachers. Charlene has continued

174



discussions with special education teachers to help them prepare for the HOUSSE
document completion.

As of this report date, NDE is still awaiting feedback and approval from the U. S.
Department of Education. Issues still exist regarding the endorsements and certification
of middle level educators and the certification necessary for special education teachers
based on their educational role with special education students.

While the administrative staff continue to work toward the selection of highly qualified
teachers, Millard Public Schools continue to exceed the state and federal requirements for
teacher certification.

175



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Update on Seniors’ Status on ELO Assessments

Meeting Date: 5/15/06

Department: Planning & Evaluation

Title and Brief
Description: There were 7 senior students at North High and 4 at South High

who participated in the end-of-year retesting occasions for ELO
assessments.

Action Desired: Approval ___ Discussion x Information Only ____

Background: Of the 4 students at South, 3 did not take all other needed tests, but
those three are all returning in the fall in order to complete
additional credits. The other student took and demonstrated
mastery on both needed assessments. At North, 3 students showed
mastery of their required ELOs. The other 4 students did not take
or did not master one or more ELO assessment. Those 4 students
are Special Education and may have their cutscore adjusted
accordingly (and two of the four need additional coursework).

Options/Alternatives
Considered: N.A.

Recommendations: Use the results to monitor and adjust individual students’ plans and
programs.

Strategic Plan
Reference: To meet the mission and strategic goals.

Implications of
Adoption/Rejection: N.A.

Timeline: Begin using results immediately.

Responsible
Persons: John Crawford for results; Educational Services and building

administrators for programs.

Superintendent’s Signature: ______________________________

176



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: IAQ Report

MEETING DATE: May 15, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: IAQ Report – Information related to indoor air quality issues in the District.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval Discussion Information Only x .

BACKGROUND: (See the attached memo for information.)

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: n/a

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: n/a

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

177



MEMORANDUM

To: K. Lutz
Re: IAQ Report
From: K. Fossen
Date: May 10, 2006

Indoor air quality (IAQ) has been receiving more attention in recent years. Here is a
summary of the IAQ issues that we have been addressing this year:

Russell Middle School:

We received a report of possible health issues for a student. The area of the building
where the concerns focused was investigated and the HVAC system was checked.
AMI (a local environmental testing company) was brought in to do air sampling. The
results indicated a higher than normal level of carbon dioxide.1

In light of the test results, a contractor was engaged to re-balance the HVAC in the
area. Additionally, the air filters were upgraded to a higher rating. The result was an
improvement in the carbon dioxide levels in the area.

A second issue, similar to the above, was reported by a teacher in another area of the
building. Similar procedures were followed with similar results.

The entire building is being watched closely. We are also evaluating the effectiveness
of the higher rating filters. Russell will be recommended in the future for mechanical
review due to the outside air issues.

West High School:

We receive reports of mold in the pool locker room shower area. The matter was
investigated and mold was confirmed by the maintenance staff. The mold was caused
by a continuously wet surface. The surface was a painted block wall where the paint
had peeled away form the block. This left an area behind the paint that could not be
effectively disinfected.

The matter was resolved by stripping the paint from the wall and installing ceramic tile
in its place.

1 Unlike carbon monoxide, elevated levels of carbon dioxide are not necessarily harmful. The elevated
levels of carbon dioxide do, however, indicate the possibility that the HVAC system is not bringing
sufficient outside air into the building.

178



Reeder Elementary School:

We received reports from staff members of possible IAQ issues. AMI was contacted to
conduct air samplings. The results indicted an elevated particle count that was
attributed to the dust in the air from construction activity in the area of the school.

In order to address the issue, higher rated filters were installed. Additionally, the filter
replacement schedule was revised to twice monthly (rather than once monthly) until the
construction in the area subsides. The building continues to be monitored to evaluate
the effectiveness of the measures taken.

Central Middle:

We received reports from two teachers regarding possible IAQ issues. Inspections by
our maintenance staff did not reveal any visual abnormalities, so AMI was contacted to
do air samplings. No major issues were found.

Subsequently, ATC (another local environmental testing company) was engaged to
review the information and do additional testing. No mold was found, however,
recommendations for possible actions were made. These recommendations included
duct cleaning in the area, filter upgrades, and testing the fire proofing materials in the
area. A meeting with ATC is currently be scheduled to review their findings and
recommendations.

Ezra:

We received reports from several teachers regarding possible IAQ issues. The Ezra
IAQ matter has a long story (with pictures) behind it. A more lengthy report has been
put on a CD and will be distributed separately. Since there were a number of photos
and reports, the information was too large to be transferred via e-mail or download over
our network.

In a nutshell, mold was found incapsulated in the walls around the exterior windows. It
appears that this was caused by condensation on the hollow metal windows.
Additionally, it was discovered that the HVAC system was not bringing adequate
outside air into the building.

To remedy the issues, the following are being done (see the CD for more detailed info):

1. The interior walls around the windows are being removed prior to the end of
school. This affects about 2-3 feet on either side of each exterior window. I
believe there are 12 windows involved. This work is being accomplished on
weekends by an outside contractor.

2. During the summer, the exterior windows will be replaced with windows that
have a thermal break. This should eliminate the condensation in the wall

179



cavities. This will not only address the mold issue but will also stop the hidden
building deterioration that was occurring in the wall cavities.

3. The building was already scheduled for recarpeting this summer. The
contractor for this project has scheduled his work around the window
replacement work so both will get done this summer as planned.

4. The HVAC system will need to be upgraded to DDC controls (to replace the
pneumatic controls that are failing and contributing to the HVAC fresh air
problem). The Schemmer Associates have estimated the cost of this replace to
be about $172,000 (plus another $11,000 if the chiller is replaced at the same
time).

5. The exterior of the building has been sealed to resolve any potential issues with
outside moisture penetrating into the wall cavities.

The summer construction schedule for Ezra Elementary is tight, but we planned to have
the building ready for occupancy when school commence in August.

180


	Board Meeting May 15, 2006
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Board Minutes May 1, 2006
	E.2. Special Meeting Minutes May 8, 2006
	E.3 and 4 Financials
	E.4. Committee Meeting Minutes May 8, 2006
	H.1. Approval of 2006 High School Graduates
	H.2. Approval of Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Educational Paraprofessional Association of Millard (EPAM)
	H.3. CSMI Contract Addendum
	H.4. Approval of Rule 5400.4 - Pupil Services - Student Discipline - Curtailment of Extracurricular Activities
	H.5. Approval of Rule 5400.6 - Pupil Services - Standards for Student Conduct
	H.6. Approval of Food Service Meal Prices
	H.7. Approval of New ELO Cut Scores
	H.8. Approval of Dental Plan Provider
	H.9. Approval of Health Plan Self-Funded Third Party Administrator
	H.10 Administrator for Hire
	H.11. Personnel Actions:  Resignations, Leaves of Absence, and New Hires
	I.1. Bond Construction Report
	I.2. Telephone Prefix Change
	I.3. NCLB Qualified Teachers Report
	I.4. Update on Seniors' Status on ELO Assessment
	I.5. Report on Enbironmental Issues



